
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly 
have an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 
person, provided that the person may request a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are 
required to be confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 
5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations. 

                                                        
CCMC HOSPITAL SERVICES BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 
            JUNE 26, 2025, REGULAR MEETING 
                   12:00PM HYBRID IN-PERSON 

               
 CCMC, WE BELIEVE THAT HEALTHY PEOPLE CREATE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY. 

OPENING: Call to Order 
Roll Call - Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, Ann Linville, Diane Ujioka and Shelly 
Kocan. 
Establishment of a Quorum 
A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS  

(Speaker must give name and agenda item)   
 1. Audience Comments  

2. Guest Speaker  
B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT  
C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. May 29, 2025, Meeting Minutes       Pgs 1-3 
F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS OR ADVISORS   

1. Board Chair Report            
2. CEO Report          Pg 4 
3. Director of Finance Report        Pgs 5-8 

G. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
H. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Delineation of Privileges for Eric Davis, MD      Pgs 9-10 
2. Approval of 2025 Employee Handbook      Pgs 11-65 

I.  AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (limited to 3 minutes per speaker) Members of the public are given the                
opportunity to comment on matters which are within the subject matter authority of the Board and are appropriate for discussion in an open session. 

J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
K. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
L. ADJOURNMENT   
 
This Board of Directors meeting will be held via ZOOM: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09 
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 

To call in: 1-253-215-8782  
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 
For a full packet, go to www.cityofcordova.net/government/boards-commissions/health-services-board 
 

 

Board of Directors 
Kelsey Hayden exp. 3/26 
Liz Senear exp. 3/27 
Ann Linville exp. 3/28 
Diane Ujioka exp. 3/27 
Shelly Kocan exp. 3/28 
 
CEO  
Hannah Sanders, M.D. 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09


Minutes 
CCMC Hospital Services Board of Directors Quarterly Meeting 

June 26, 2025, at 12:00pm 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 
Kelsey Hayden called the Board Meeting to order at 12:09pm.   
Board members present: Diane Ujioka, Liz Senear, and Shelly Kocan. 
Board members absent: Kelsey Hayden and Ann Linville  

Quorum was established. 3 members present. 

A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS
1. Audience Comments ~ None
2. Guest Speaker ~ Sean Johnson, CPA with a presentation to review the 2024 audit–

Sean Johnson, partner with Dingus, Zarecor, and Associates PLLC presented the
CCMC 2024 Audit to the Board of Directors. A copy of the audit has been placed 
into the permanent record. 

B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT ~ None
C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ~ None
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/ Ujioka S/ Kocan “I move to approve the agenda.”
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Linville – absent, and Hayden – absent.
3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. May 29, 2025, Meeting Minutes
M/Ujioka S/Kocan “I move to approve the minutes.”
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Linville –yes, Kocan– absent, and Hayden-absent.
3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed.

F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS and ADVISORS

CEO Report – The written report was submitted in advance and included updates on advocacy 
activities with state and federal leadership. Discussion included: 

• Financial risks related to a historic $5M City lease obligation linked to past PERS
payments.

1

https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3


• Lack of formal terms or enforcement from the City; confirmation pending via upcoming
City audit.

• General financial trends affecting Alaska hospitals due to high cost of care and low
patient volume.

2. Director of Finance Report – The written report was submitted and reviewed in part.
Highlights included: 

• Revenue increases offset by large contractual adjustments and allowances for
uncollectible accounts.

• $400,000 in estimated uncollectibles reported.
• A $200,000 Medicare swing bed billing issue is being reprocessed and may be recovered.
• Concerns about commercial payer delays and anticipated cost increases due to supplier

tariffs.
• Medicaid cuts at the federal level not expected to impact CCMC significantly in the short

term.
• Cash flow has improved since month-end with anticipated reimbursements pending.

G. ACTION ITEMS
1. Delineation of Privileges for Angela South, PMHNP –
M/Ujioka S/Kocan “I move that the CCMC Hospital Services Board of Directors
approve the Delineation of Privileges for Angela South, PMHNP as presented.”
Voice Vote on Motion
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Linville – absent, and Hayden –
absent.

3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed. 

1. Delineation of Privileges for Rajiv Rao, MD –
M/Kocan S/Ujioka “I move that the CCMC Hospital Services Board of Directors 
approve the Delineation of Privileges for Dr. Rajiv Rao, MD as presented.” 
Voice Vote on Motion 
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Linville – absent, and Hayden – 
absent.    

3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed. 

2. Delineation or Privileges for Jonathan Kleinman, MD –
M/Kocan S/Linville “I move that the CCMC Hospital Services Board of Directors 
approve the recredentialing of teleneuro Privileges for Jonathan Kleinman, MD, as 
presented.” 
Voice Vote on Motion 

2

https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3


Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Hayden – absent, and Linville – 
absent.    
3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed. 

4. Approval of Annual Contract for Multiview Financial Software –
M/Kocan S/Ujioka “I move that the Board of Directors approve the renewal of the
annual contract with Multiview for financial software services at a total cost of 
$32,372.04 for the fiscal year.”  
Voice Vote on Motion 
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Hayden – absent, and Linville – 
absent.    
3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed. 

AMENDMENT: motion amended to reflect that this is not a renewal, but a new contract in it’s 
entirety.      

Discussion notes: Current accounting software through TruBridge is outdated and 
inefficient. Multiview offers better integration with existing systems and streamlined workflows.  
Installation cost waived by Multiview; early termination within 3 years would require partial 
reimbursement of the waved fee. 

H. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ~ None
I. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS
Kocan: Offered assistance with pet euthanasia and incineration planning; coordinating
with local volunteers.

Ujioka: Expressed appreciation for recent improvements and audit outcomes. 

Senear: Noted concern about current negative financials but felt optimistic about long-
term stability. 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSION
M/Ujioka S/Kocan “I move that the CCMC Hospital Services Board of Directors 

enter executive session.” 
Voice Vote on Motion 
Senear – yes, Ujioka – yes, Kocan – yes, Linville – absent, and Ujioka – absent.    
3 yeas, 0 nay, 2 absent; Motion passed. 

Next board meeting scheduled for 6/26/25 

3

https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3
https://cdvcmc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/abourgeois_cdvcmc_com/Documents/Transcribed%20Files/hsb%20may%2025%27%20minutes%201.mp3


 CCMC CEO Board Report – June 2025 

Hannah Sanders, CEO 

Federal Legislative Developments 

We are closely monitoring the status of the Senate's proposed large-scale bill that includes 
large healthcare impacts. If enacted, it poses significant risks to our ability to manage 
uncompensated care, especially given persistent and potentially increased  barriers to 
Medicaid access. 

CCMC continues to engage Alaska’s federal delegation and continuing the message that 
rural and critical-access hospitals like CCMC need sustained policy and funding 
commitments to maintain stability. 

Volume Trends 

Current inpatient activity—including both swing bed and acute care days—continue to 
align with the low volume trend from 2024.  The 2024 volumes was well below our historic 
averages  seen in 2022 and 2023.  Currently fishing and tourist season is in full swing and 
we expect to see some increase in volume.  

 Staffing & Recruitment 

Staffing levels have remained steady in June, with no unexpected departures. However, we 
still have key vacancies. We have  ongoing recruitment efforts for a permanent physician,  
nurses across for ER, swing and LTC and an occupational therapist. Until these roles are 
filled, we rely on locum (travel) and per diem professionals. 

4



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
OPERATING/INCOME STATEMENT 06/18/25  10:49 AM
FOR THE  5 MONTHS ENDING 05/31/25

--------- S I N G L E     M O N T H ---------- ------------ Y E A R   T O   D A T E ------------
ACTUAL         BUDGET      $ VARIANCE    % VAR ACTUAL          BUDGET     $ VARIANCE     % VAR

REVENUE
 ACUTE 22,198 172,090 (149,891)      (87) 676,309 593,171 83,137 14
 SWING BED 95,521 361,606 (266,085)      (73) 1,343,898       1,309,299 34,599 2
 LONG TERM CARE       473,221 468,673 4,547 0       2,293,526       2,418,829 (125,302)       (5)
 CLINIC 116,228 124,584 (8,356)       (6) 437,616 549,036 (111,420)      (20)
 ANCILLARY DEPTS      296,306 299,866 (3,559)       (1) 1,631,144       1,400,281 230,862 16
 EMERGENCY DEPART     417,739 333,592 84,147 25       1,742,679       1,525,561 217,118 14
 BEHAVIORAL HEALT      15,922 20,348 (4,426)      (21) 109,181 141,866 (32,685)      (23)
 RETAIL PHARMACY      226,825 183,403 43,421 23       1,037,056 847,019 190,037 22

--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------
   PATIENT SERVIC   1,663,963      1,964,166 (300,203)      (15)      9,271,413       8,785,066 486,346 5

DEDUCTIONS
 CHARITY 7,534 6,841 (692) (10) 47,154          31,816 (15,337)      (48)
 CONTRACTUAL ADJU     516,707 285,977 (230,729)      (80) 3,158,514       2,168,825 (989,689)      (45)
 ADMINISTRATIVE A       2,138 29,878 27,740 92 41,422 79,203 37,781 47
 BAD DEBT (261,230) 20,000 281,230      1406 173,935 100,502 (73,433)      (73)

--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------
   DEDUCTIONS TOT     265,149        342,698 77,548 22       3,421,027       2,380,348      (1,040,678)      (43)

COST RECOVERIES
 GRANTS 94,387 36,275 58,111       160 217,415         212,370 5,044 2
 IN-KIND CONTRIBU 0 16,662 (16,662)     (100) 83,633 83,313 320 0
 OTHER REVENUE 16,832 9,066 7,765 85 52,856 60,012 (7,155)      (11)

--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------

   COST RECOVERIE     111,219 62,005 49,213 79 353,905         355,696          (1,790)     (0)
--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------

   TOTAL REVENUES   1,510,033      1,683,473 (173,440)      (10)      6,204,291       6,760,414        (556,122)       (8)

EXPENSES
 WAGES 551,930 544,490 (7,440)       (1) 2,711,121       2,795,522 84,400 3
 TAXES & BENEFITS     256,248 263,450 7,201 2       1,266,874       1,450,407 183,533 12
 PROFESSIONAL SER     263,785 273,661 9,875 3       1,270,904       1,243,281 (27,622)       (2)
 SUPPLIES 230,670 195,216 (35,454)      (18) 1,068,734 879,941 (188,792)      (21)
 MINOR EQUIPMENT 48 2,147 2,099 97          49,086 15,160 (33,925)     (223)
 REPAIRS & MAINTE      15,628 8,468 (7,160)      (84) 29,013 54,907 25,894 47
 RENTS & LEASES 13,395 12,399 (995) (8) 64,625 60,500 (4,125)       (6)
 UTILITIES 24,995 42,396 17,401 41 235,629 251,115 15,485 6
 TRAVEL & TRAININ      10,199 8,426 (1,772)      (21) 48,826 41,257 (7,569)      (18)
 INSURANCES 20,301 20,574 273 1 117,952 102,873 (15,078)      (14)
 RECRUIT & RELOCA 100 0 (100) (0) 8,688 500 (8,187)    (1635)
 DEPRECIATION 49,377 48,337 (1,039)       (2) 247,924 246,805 (1,119)     (0)
 OTHER EXPENSES 13,340 18,632 5,291 28          63,229 98,443 35,214 35

--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------
   TOTAL EXPENSES   1,450,022      1,438,203 (11,818)     (0) 7,182,609       7,240,717          58,108 0

--------------  -------------  -------------- --------------  --------------  --------------

   OPERATING INCO      60,011 245,270 (185,258)      (75) (978,317)       (480,303)       (498,014)     (103)
   NET INCOME 60,011 245,270 (185,258)      (75) (978,317)       (480,303)       (498,014)     (103)

==============  =============  ============== ==============  ==============  ==============
5



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
06/18/25  10:49 AM BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDING: 05/31/25

Current Year Prior Year Net Change

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
  CASH 1,567,377 2,388,314 (820,936)
  NET ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE 1,709,310 2,011,533 (302,222)
  THIRD PARTY RECEIVABLE (101,399) (736,427) 635,028
  CLEARING ACCOUNTS 92,930 10,835 82,095
  PREPAID EXPENSES 85,728 95,902 (10,173)
  INVENTORY 420,671 471,806 (51,134)

-----------------  -----------------  -----------------
    TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,774,619          4,241,963 (467,343)

PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT
  LAND 122,010 122,010
  BUILDINGS 8,666,889 8,666,889
  EQUIPMENT 10,176,829 10,120,539 56,289
  CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 25,271 18,843 6,427

-----------------  -----------------  -----------------
    SUBTOTAL PP&E 18,991,000 18,928,282 62,717
  LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (15,484,564)       (14,902,062) (582,501)

-----------------  -----------------  -----------------
    TOTAL PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT 3,506,435          4,026,219 (519,784)

OTHER ASSETS
  GOODWILL - PHARMACY 150,000 150,000
  GOODWILL - PHARMACY (111,250) (96,250) (15,000)
  PERS DEFERRED OUTFLOW 949,242 949,242
    TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 987,992 1,002,992 (15,000)

    TOTAL ASSETS 8,269,047          9,271,175 (1,002,127)
=================  =================  =================

6



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
06/18/25  10:49 AM BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDING: 05/31/25

Current Year Prior Year Net Change

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 374,298 390,056 (15,758)
  PAYROLL & RELATED LIABILITIES 705,386 602,246 103,140
  INTEREST & OTHER PAYABLES 1,283 7,711 (6,428)
  LONG TERM DEBT - CITY 5,466,458 5,466,458
  OTHER CURRENT LONG TERM DEBT 335,598 406,787 (71,188)

-----------------  -----------------  -----------------
    TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,883,025          6,873,260              9,764

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
  NET PENSION LIABILITY 8,625,106 8,625,106
    TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 8,625,106 8,625,106

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  PENSION DEFERRED INFLOW (3,759,735) (3,759,735)
    TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS (3,759,735) (3,759,735)

    TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,748,396 11,738,631 9,764

NET POSITION  (EQUITY)
  UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE (2,519,544) (1,909,527) (610,017)
  TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 18,513 18,513
  CURRENT YEAR NET INCOME (978,317) (576,442) (401,875)

-----------------  -----------------  -----------------
    TOTAL NET POSITION (3,479,348)        (2,467,455) (1,011,892)

    TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION 8,269,047          9,271,175 (1,002,127)
=================  =================  =================

7



Days per Month 31 28 31 30 31 30 31 31 30 31 30 31
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Cumulative Monthly

Hosp Acute+SWB Avg. Census 29 Total Average
FY 2022 1.6 3.3 2.8 2.1 1.5 1.9 3.5 3.5 3.9 0.5 1.0 2.1 2.3
FY 2023 2.5 1.3 2.3 3.6 2.0 0.5 1.1 0.5 2.3 2.7 2.9 2.9 2.1
FY 2024 1.4 1.4 1.4 0.6 1.9 1.3 1.7 2.4 2.7 1.6 0.9 0.7 1.5
FY 2025 0.7 2.2 2.5 1.4 0.5 1.4
Acute Admits
FY 2022 6 1 2 3 5 7 8 4 3 4 3 5 51 4.3
FY 2023 1 3 6 2 5 4 5 4 2 2 3 4 41 3.4
FY 2024 4 4 2 1 5 8 3 4 12 7 4 4 58 4.8
FY 2025 2 4 3 2 1 12 2.4
Acute Patient Days
FY 2022 15 11 7 10 8 10 21 9 12 7 5 14 129 10.8
FY 2023 3 9 16 15 15 11 18 4 12 4 9 10 126 10.5
FY 2024 12 14 10 1 18 29 15 15 31 13 10 21 189 15.8
FY 2025 7 13 23 7 2 52 10.4
SWB Admits
FY 2022 1 3 0 1 2 2 3 2 4 2 2 1 23 1.9
FY 2023 2 1 3 2 1 1 1 0 3 2 3 1 20 1.7
FY 2024 2 2 1 0 4 1 2 1 3 1 2 0 19 1.6
FY 2025 1 2 2 1 0 6 1.2
SWB Patient Days
FY 2022 34 81 79 54 37 48 89 101 104 7 24 52 710 59.2
FY 2023 73 28 55 94 48 5 15 13 57 80 79 81 628 52.3
FY 2024 30 25 34 16 42 11 39 58 50 38 18 2 363 30.3
FY 2025 15 48 53 36 12 164 32.8
CCMC LTC Admits
FY 2022 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.1
FY 2023 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 2 0 1 0 0 6 0.5
FY 2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0.2
FY 2025 0 1 0 0 0 1 0.2
CCMC LTC Resident Days
FY 2021 300 300 298 300 310 299 298 310 300 310 298 309 3,632 302.7
FY 2022 310 280 310 300 310 299 310 310 300 310 290 310 3,639 303.3
FY 2023 310 280 310 309 296 270 257 268 252 271 270 279 3,372 281.0
FY 2024 309 290 290 270 262 240 248 248 240 254 270 279 3,200 266.7
FY 2025 273 250 279 270 279 1,351 270.2
CCMC LTC Avg. Census
FY 2022 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10.0
FY 2023 10 10 10 10 10 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 9.2
FY 2024 10 10 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 8.7
FY 2025 9 9 9 9 9 9.0
ER Visits
FY 2022 38 38 42 50 75 85 76 97 64 63 38 46 712 59.3
FY 2023 62 39 67 39 56 84 109 100 69 40 48 45 758 63.2
FY 2024 58 44 37 39 51 97 80 78 79 55 42 55 715 59.6
FY 2025 44 50 59 43 76 272 54.4
PT Procedures
FY 2022 275 459 551 394 307 352 396 384 360 201 274 442 4,395 366.3
FY 2023 364 322 458 405 345 209 304 325 479 550 436 343 4,540 378.3
FY 2024 302 213 291 289 341 252 256 321 402 270 266 277 3,480 290.0
FY 2025 341 388 306 341 294 1,670 334.0
OT Procedures
FY 2022 122 190 251 134 120 229 243 200 197 53 87 164 1,990 165.8
FY 2023 94 51 152 115 75 94 70 106 167 163 144 104 1,335 111.3
FY 2024 121 56 79 86 133 85 122 82 131 92 107 115 1,209 100.8
FY 2025 87 89 96 147 89 508 101.6
Lab Tests
FY 2022 825 576 671 902 958 699 610 822 594 585 499 553 8,294 691.2
FY 2023 545 546 575 578 801 655 766 649 512 501 478 539 7,145 595.4
FY 2024 513 526 503 778 814 628 703 637 667 593 576 502 7,440 620.0
FY 2025 542 447 627 787 672 3,075 615.0
X-Ray Procedures
FY 2022 82 63 64 94 60 82 69 93 51 72 58 61 849 70.8
FY 2023 72 45 63 49 50 88 97 107 83 71 61 67 853 71.1
FY 2024 76 54 88 54 75 54 82 64 60 62 58 44 771 64.3
FY 2025 79 61 62 51 67 320 64.0
CT Procedures
FY 2022 21 21 36 25 29 42 31 26 16 30 15 28 320 26.7
FY 2023 30 18 22 18 16 36 39 34 26 4 23 24 290 24.2
FY 2024 38 27 2 16 19 29 31 32 29 17 17 27 284 23.7
FY 2025 23 20 32 20 28 123 24.6
CCMC Clinic Visits
FY 2022 288 196 199 237 260 241 221 212 304 359 219 182 2,918 243.2
FY 2023 221 158 151 176 214 188 230 289 242 371 216 193 2,649 220.8
FY 2024 205 188 196 188 241 202 250 209 235 298 205 163 2,580 215.0
FY 2025 201 175 196 181 220 973 194.6
Behavioral Hlth Visits
FY 2022 84 74 83 79 82 67 74 99 126 125 108 94 1,095 91.3
FY 2023 150 68 86 98 122 86 94 97 94 106 136 118 1,255 104.6
FY 2024 167 128 117 118 79 51 53 75 68 96 99 108 1,159 96.6
FY 2025 108 86 82 107 87 470 94.0

Cordova Community Medical Center Statistics

8



PRACTITIONER CREDENTIALING 

6/26/2025 

Ann Linville, Chair  

CCMC Authority Board 

ccmcboardseata@cdvcmc.com 

Cordova Community Medical Center 

Cordova, AK 99574 

RE: Eric Davis, MD 

Dear Chairperson and Hospital Authority Board, 

Cordova Community Medical Center has reviewed credentialing application for privileges to our hospital. In accordance 

with our medical staff bylaws, the credentialing committee has reviewed the application including practitioner licenses, 

and professional references. We recommend Dr Davis to be approved for Delegated Privileges at Cordova Community 

Medical Center. 

Sincerely, 

Benjamin Head, MD 
Chief of Staff Date 

Hannah Sanders, MD 

Chief Executive Officer Date 

~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community~ 

Docusign Envelope ID: F8BE3415-40F1-4AD3-BEA7-2BFEBDD6E66E

16 June 2025 | 4:06 PM AKDT

17 June 2025 | 8:21 AM AKDT

9



Memorandum 

To: CCMC Authority Board of Directors 
Subject: Approval of Privileges for Eric Davis, MD 
Date: 6/26/2025 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors 
approve the Delineation of Privileges for Eric Davis, MD as presented.” 

10



Memorandum 

To: CCMC Authority Board of Directors 
From: Dr. Hannah Sanders, Chief Executive Officer 
Subject: Approval of 2025 Employee Handbook 
Date: 06/26/2025 

CCMC’s Employee handbook was reviewed and revised to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations.  The following changes have been made:  

5.1.6 New sick leave policy ensuring compliance to Alaska Paid Sick Leave Law. Changes include CCMC 
tracking designated sick leave hours congruent with PTO and the addition of sick leave accrual for 
temporary and casual employees.  

6.1.2 – language to ensure compliance with the Pregnant Workers Fairness Act. 

Suggested Motion: “Suggested Motion: “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of 
Directors approve the revised CCMC Employee Handbook.”.”  

11



Page 1 of 54 

Cordova Community Medical Center EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

REVISED: June 26, 2025 

This handbook has been reviewed and approved 

Administrator/CEO Signature: 

Hannah Sanders, MD 

Chief Executive Officer 

CCMC Authority Board: 
CCMC Authority Board of Director 

12



Page 2 of 54 

1. INTRODUCTION 7 

2. YOUR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP WITH CCMC 8 

3. HIRING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 13 

4. COMPENSATION 15 

4.1 Employment Classifications 15 

4.1.1 Full-time regular employee

4.1.2 Part-time regular employee

4.1.3 Temporary employee

4.1.4 Volunteers

4.1.5 Casual Employees

4.2 Position Changes by Administration 16 

4.2.1 Change in Position 

4.2.2 Reasonable notice of a demotion 

4.3 Wage and Hour Job Classification  17 

4.3.1 Exempt   

4.3.2 Non-exempt 

4.4 Workday and Workweek 17 

4.4.1 Work Day 

4.4.2 Work Week 

4.5 Timekeeping   17 

4.6 Payroll   18 

4.6.1 Pay Period/Paydays 

4.6.3 Payroll Deductions 

4.6.4 Pay Advances 

4.7 Wage Scale – Compensation and Pay Increases  18 

4.8 Shift Differential 19 

4.8.1 Night Shift Differential 

4.8.2 Night Shift Differential and Time Off 

4.9 Overtime 19 

4.10 On-Call Compensation 20 

4.11 Breaks and Meal Periods  20 

4.12 Holidays 20 

4.12.1 Recognized Holidays  

4.12.2 Time Off on Holiday 

4.12.3 Compensation for Holidays Not Worked 

13



Page 3 of 54 
 

4.12.4 Compensation for Holiday Worked – Non-Exempt       

4.12.5 Compensation for Holiday Worked When on Weekend       

4.12.6 Compensation for Holiday Worked – Exempt        

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS           21 

5.1 Paid Time Off (PTO)           22 

5.1.1 Accrual             

5.1.2 Rate Schedule            

5.1.3 Use of PTO            

5.1.4 PTO Carryover and Forfeiture          

5.2 Employee Benefit Plans          22 

5.2.1 Eligibility In General           

5.2.2 Group Health Insurance           

5.2.3 Life Insurance            

5.2.4 Retirement Plan (PERS)          

5.2.5 Employee Assistance Program (EAP)        

5.2.6 Long Term Disability           

6. LEAVE POLICIES          24 

6.1 Family & Medical Leave          24 

6.1.1 Eligibility for Leave           

6.1.2 Reasons Eligible employees may be granted FMLA or State FMLA     

6.1.3 Military Family Leave           

6.1.4 When Medical Certification Is Required         

6.1.5 Compensation            

6.1.6 Benefits Continuation  

6.1.7 Job Restoration  

6.1.8 Key Employees  

6.1.9 Fitness for Duty 

6.1.10 Employee Notice  

6.1.11 Employer Notice  

6.1.12 Definitions  

6.2 Bereavement Leave           29 

6.3 Uniformed Service Leave          29 

6.3.1 Giving of Notice   

6.3.2 Length of Leave   

6.3.3 Return to Work  

14



Page 4 of 54 
 

6.3.4 Employment Position  

6.3.5 Nondiscrimination  

6.3.6 Benefits Continuation During Uniformed Service Leaves  

6.3.7 Compensation  

6.4 Court Leave           31 

6.5 Voting Leave           31 

6.6 Educational Support and Leave         31 

6.7 Income Assurance Program (IAP)         32 

6.7.1 IAP Use  

6.7.2 IAP Recovery  

7. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS          32 

7.1 ATTENDANCE           32 

7.1.1 Reporting to Work  

7.1.2 Notice of Absence or Lateness  

7.1.3 Grounds  

7.1.4 Illness  

7.2 Performance Evaluations          33 

7.2.1 Regular Assessments  

7.2.2 Following Introductory Period  

7.2.3 Unsatisfactory Rating  

7.3 Smoke-Free Workplace          34 

7.4 Standards of Performance          34 

7.5 Compliance with Healthcare Laws         35 

7.5.1 Reporting Requirements  

7.5.2 Medical Center’s Response  

7.6 Solicitation            35 

7.7 Maintaining the Proper Healthcare Environment       36 

7.8 Personal Appearance/Dress Code         36 

7.9 Telephones/Cell Phones          36 

7.10 Computer, Internet and E-Mail Usage        36 

7.10.1 Additional policies and procedures for Use of the Internet 

7.10.2 Additional Policies and Procedures for Use of Email  

7.11 Remote Work           40 

8. DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE        42 

8.1 Federal Drug Free Workplace Act Policy Statement       42 

15



Page 5 of 54 
 

8.1.1 Statement  

8.1.2 Policy and Procedures  

8.2 Drug and Alcohol Testing          43 

8.2.1 Purpose  

8.2.2 Prohibited Conduct  

8.2.3 Categories of Employees Tested    

8.2.4 Testing  

8.2.5 Testing Procedures  

8.2.6 Reporting Test Results  

8.2.7 Requirement to Submit to Testing/Refusals to Submit  

8.2.8 Confidentiality of Results  

8.2.9 Definitions  

9. DISCIPLINE AND DISMISSAL          49 

9.1 Disciplinary Action           49 

9.2 Separation from Employment         49 

9.2.1 Layoff  

9.2.2 Discharge  

9.2.3 Resignation  

9.3 Wage Payment Upon Termination         49 

9.4 Return of Property           49 

9.5 Promotions and Transfers          49 

9.6 Re-Employment           50 

9.6.1 Former Employees  

9.6.2 Recalled Employees  

9.7 References Policy           50 

10. HEALTH AND SAFETY           50 

10.1 Reporting Employee Injuries         50 

10.2 Accidents/Needle Sticks          50 

10.3 Weapons Prohibited          51 

11. OPEN COMMUNICATION POLICY         51 

12. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE          51 

12.1 Definition of a Grievance          51 

12.2 Grievance Process          51 

12.2.1 Step 1  

12.2.2 Step 2  

16



Page 6 of 54 
 

12.2.3 Step 3  

12.2.4 Step 4  

12.3 Mediation           52 

12.3.1 Step 1  

12.3.2 Step 2  

12.4 Arbitration            53 

12.4.1 Step 1  

12.4.2 Step 2  

12.4.3 Step 3  

12.4.4 Step 4  

12.5 Time Limits of the Essence         53 

12.6 Exclusive Remedy           53 

17



Page 7 of 54 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Source of Handbook 
 

The Cordova Community Medical Center (“CCMC” or the “Medical Center”) Handbook of employee 
policies has been prepared to inform and guide all Medical Center personnel. Additional information may be 
found in other documents and standards, such as resolutions of CCMC Authority Board of Director's, the 
Cordova City Council, other adopted policies and procedures, and the official plan documents of CCMC’s 
employee benefit plans. In the event you have questions or need clarification of personnel policies, 
procedures, or expectations, please contact your Department Manager, the Human Resources Manager or the 
Administrator/CEO. 

 
1.2 Medical Center History 

 
The current CCMC facility was dedicated on May 31, 1986, and is one of Cordova’s largest employers. The 
Medical Center is a Department of the City of Cordova, with its own governing board known as the CCMC 
Authority Board of Director's. CCMC is certified as a Critical Access Hospital (CAH) and as a Long-Term 
Care (LTC) facility, and provides community health services including: 

 
 13-Bed Acute and Swing Care Medical Center 
 10 Long Term Care Beds 
 24-hour Emergency Room Services 
 Rehab Services 
 Imaging Department 
 Laboratory Services 
 Primary Care Clinic 
 Specialty Clinics 
 Sound Alternatives Behavioral Health Clinic 

 
1.3 Purpose of this Handbook 
An important goal of CCMC is to inform employees of the Medical Center’s rules and regulations, which 
guide the responsibilities of both the employee and employer. This Handbook is designed solely to provide 
you with the general nature of such personnel policies. Please keep in mind that the policies and procedures 
in this Handbook are for general reference only and may not be applicable in all cases. A number of laws 
apply to CCMC and to the employee/employer relationship, including certain provisions of the Cordova City 
Code. This Handbook touches on some of the more common requirements. In the event of any conflicts 
between this Handbook and applicable laws, Medical Center grant requirements, Medicaid requirements, or 
the obligations of applicable contracts, the governing contract, law or guideline will prevail over this 
Handbook. 

 
1.4 Handbook Disclaimers 

 
You should familiarize yourself with the contents of this Handbook and, when in doubt about any policy or 
procedure, or any information contained herein, you should contact your Department Manager or Human 
Resources.  
This Handbook is not an employment contract, and only summarizes policies existing at the time of 
publication. As such, nothing in this Handbook is intended to alter the fact that your employment is “at-
will.” CCMC reserves the right to alter, change, add, or delete any policy, procedure, or guideline at 
any time and without prior or subsequent notice. We will, however, endeavor to let you know of any 
changes  
that are made. 

18



Page 8 of 54 
 

1.5 Nature of Employment 
 

Employment at CCMC is voluntary, indefinite in nature and subject to termination by you or CCMC “at-
will”, with or without cause, and with or without notice, at any time in accordance with federal, state, and/or 
local laws. Nothing in this Handbook shall be interpreted to be in conflict with or to eliminate or modify in any 
way the “at-will” employment status of CCMC employees. This policy of employment “at-will” may not be 
modified by any member of CCMC management and shall not be modified in any publication or document. 
The only exception to this policy is a written employment agreement approved and executed by the 
Administrator/CEO of CCMC and the CCMC Authority Board Chairperson (or his/her designee). 

 
2. YOUR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP WITH CCMC 

 
2.1 Equal Opportunity Policy 

 
In order to provide equal employment opportunities to all applicants and employees, CCMC’s employment 
decisions are made without regard to race, creed, color, religion, gender, age, national origin or ancestry, 
marital status, change in marital status, physical or mental disability, genetic information, pregnancy, 
parenthood, or any other status or condition protected under federal, state and local laws. 

 
2.2 Reasonable Accommodation of Qualifying Disabilities 

 
 CCMC is committed to providing equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with disabilities, 
which may include providing reasonable accommodations where appropriate. In general, it is your 
responsibility to notify the Administrator/CEO or the Human Resources Manager of the need for 
accommodation. Upon doing so, the Administrator/CEO or Human Resources Manager may ask you for your 
input on the type of accommodation you believe may be necessary for the functional limitations related to 
your disability. Accommodation will not be undertaken when providing the accommodation: (1) causes a 
direct threat to others in the workplace and the threat cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation; or 
(2) if the accommodation creates an undue hardship to CCMC. When appropriate, CCMC may seek your 
permission to obtain additional information from your health care provider regarding your capacity to perform 
the essential functions of your job position, with or without reasonable accommodation. 

 
2.3 Diversity and Inclusion Statement: 

 
At CCMC, we are committed to fostering a diverse, inclusive, and equitable environment where all employees, 
patients, and visitors are valued and respected. We believe that embracing diversity enriches our organization 
and enhances the care we provide to our community. 

 
Diversity: We celebrate the unique backgrounds, experiences, and perspectives of our staff and patients. We are 
dedicated to building a workforce that reflects the diversity of the communities we serve and to creating an 
environment where everyone feels welcome and supported. 
Inclusion: We strive to create a culture where all individuals feel included and empowered to contribute their best. 
Our practices and policies are designed to ensure that every voice is heard and that everyone has the opportunity to 
participate fully in the workplace. 
Equity: We are committed to providing fair and equitable opportunities for all employees and patients. We actively 
work to identify and eliminate barriers that may hinder access to opportunities and resources, ensuring that everyone 
has the support they need to succeed.

19



 

Page 9 of 54  

We are dedicated to ongoing education and dialogue to promote understanding and address any 
issues of inequity or exclusion. Our goal is to maintain a workplace where diversity, inclusion, 
and equity are integral to our mission and values. 

 
Every employee is expected to uphold these principles and contribute to an environment that 
supports and respects the dignity of every individual. 

 
2.4 Policy Against Harassment and Discrimination 

 
CCMC is committed to providing a work environment that is free of discrimination and 
unlawful harassment on the basis of protected status under local, state or federal law. Actions, 
words, jokes, or comments based on an employee’s race, color, creed, religion, national 
origin, gender, physical or mental disability, age, marital status, pregnancy or parenthood, 
genetic information, veteran’s status, status with regard to public assistance, or any other 
status protected by federal, state or local law will not be tolerated. Gender-based 
discrimination, whether or not sexual in nature, and the creation of an unlawful hostile 
environment based on any other protected characteristic are also prohibited under this policy. 

 
Sexual harassment is specifically prohibited. Examples of unlawful sexual harassment 
include unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal and physical 
conduct of a sexual nature when: 

 
 Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 

condition of an individual's employment; or 
 

 Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the 
basis of employment decisions affecting such individual; or 

 
 Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 

individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working environment. 

 
Unlawful sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to, sexual touching, advances or 
propositions, use of sexually explicit language, sexual comments or jokes, staring or leering, 
and displaying sexually suggestive objects or pictures. 

 
Sexual harassment applies to the conduct of a Department Manager toward a subordinate; an 
employee toward another employee; a non-employee, such as patients, vendors or other 
business visitors toward an employee; or an employee toward an applicant for employment. 
Other examples of sexual harassment include inappropriate sexual advances or other 
unwanted sexual physical or verbal conduct at business-related social functions or while 
traveling on CCMC business. Harassment or discrimination in any context must be reported 
in accordance with this policy. 

 
Any employee who believes that s/he or another employee is or has been the subject of 
discrimination or harassment should report the alleged conduct immediately to their 
Department Manager, the Human Resources Manager, or another member of CCMC 
management. Any Department Manager who learns of potential sexual or other unlawful 
harassment or discrimination will promptly consult the Human Resources Manager or the 
Administrator/CEO. 

 
All complaints will be investigated promptly, thoroughly, and fairly. The length of time it 
takes to perform the investigation will depend on the nature of the complaint. However, 
employees are free at any time to inquire about the status of the investigation. The 
existence and nature of the complaint will be disclosed only to the extent necessary to make 

20



 

Page 10 of 54  

a prompt and thorough investigation or as may be necessary to take appropriate corrective 
measures. 

 
No retaliation or reprisal against any employee for reporting discrimination or harassment 
concerns will be tolerated. 

 
The facts will determine the response to each allegation. Employee conduct which is found 
to constitute unlawful discrimination or harassment will be disciplined, up to and including 
immediate dismissal. 

 
The Alaska Human Rights Commission’s address is 800 A Street, Suite 204, Anchorage, AK 
99501 and its telephone number is (907)274-4692. 

 
 

2.5 Workplace Violence Policy 
 

CCMC is committed to preventing workplace violence and to maintaining a safe work 
environment. Given the increasing violence in society in general, CCMC has adopted the 
following guidelines to deal with intimidation, harassment, or other threats of (or actual) 
violence that may occur by or against CCMC employees or members of the public, while on 
CCMC premises or while performing CCMC business at other locations. 

 
This policy does not apply to security personnel, engaged in their official duties. 

 
All employees, including Department Manager and temporary employees, should be treated 
with courtesy and respect at all times. Violence, threats, harassment, intimidation, and other 
disruptive behavior in the workplace (or while on CCMC business outside of the workplace), 
whether committed by patients, visitors, vendors, or CCMC employees, will not be tolerated. 

 
The following is a nonexclusive list of the types of conduct prohibited by this policy: 

 
 Oral or written statements, gestures, or expressions that communicate a threat of 

physical harm; 
 Physically harming, attempting to harm, or threatening to harm one’s self, 

another person, or property; 
 Coercion, intimidation, or stalking of another; 
 Use of, or threatening to use, any weapon; 
 Any form of non-consensual physical contact (including shoving or grabbing); 
 Bringing any unauthorized weapon to CCMC premises; 
 Any other conduct that would cause a reasonable person to believe violence may occur. 

 
Individuals who commit such acts may be removed from the premises and subject to criminal 
penalties. Employees engaging in such conduct also may be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination of employment. Further, during an investigation of an 
incident, an employee may be suspended. If you notice or witness conduct you think is 
suspicious, please report it immediately to your Department Manager, or any other member 
of management. Any employee facing a situation that may result in violence should avoid 
confrontation. Instead, if possible, the employee should retreat to a location of safety and 
report the incident. However, if you believe there is a threat to personal safety involved, the 
police should be summoned immediately. 
No workplace is immune from disruptive behavior. CCMC needs your cooperation to 
implement this policy effectively and to maintain a safe working environment. All threats of 
violence or acts of violence, both direct and indirect, should be reported as soon as possible. 
This includes threats by employees, as well as threats by patients, visitors, vendors, solicitors, 

21



 

Page 11 of 54  

or other members of the public. Additionally, CCMC encourages employees to report any 
threats of violence or acts of violence that occur in their personal lives that could affect 
workplace security (i.e. issuance of a restraining order to protect the employee or threatening 
email received outside the workplace.). 

 
All reports of violations of this policy will be taken seriously and will be investigated 
promptly. CCMC encourages employees to bring disputes and differences to the attention of 
a Department Manager before the situation escalates into potential violence. As far as 
reasonably possible, CCMC will maintain the confidentiality of the reporting employee and 
of the investigation, consistent with the need to investigate and take action. CCMC will not 
tolerate any retaliation or reprisal by or against any employee who makes a good faith report 
of, or experiences, workplace violence. 

 
 

2.6 Confidentiality 
Employees of the Medical Center have access to highly personal and confidential information, 
both in written and unwritten form. All employees are obligated to maintain the 
confidentiality of information which they access, and to only access such information for the 
purposes of performing duties or functions of their position. Confidential information is not 
solely defined in terms of patient or resident information or written records, but also includes: 

 
• Information concerning Medical Center employees or volunteers; 
• Information concerning physicians or other professionals affiliated with the 

Medical Center; and 
• Information concerning visitors, families, or patient/residents, whether stored 

electronically or in document form or obtained through other means of 
communication. 

 
Sharing proprietary information regarding CCMC operations, practices, and procedures with 
patients or any other third party is prohibited. Impermissible disclosures of CCMC 
confidential or proprietary information will result in discipline up to and including immediate 
termination. 

 
Accessing confidential information for personal advantage or any reason not related to the 
employee’s job responsibilities is a serious violation and is strictly forbidden. Individuals 
who improperly access, copy or disclose confidential information will be disciplined, and 
may be referred to proper authorities (including licensing agencies). Unauthorized removal, 
destruction or loss of any document or protected health information and conduct which 
creates a risk of impermissible disclosure will result in discipline, up to and including 
immediate termination. 

 
CCMC is committed to adhering to all state and federal laws regarding patient 
confidentiality. All employees must comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
policies and procedures of CCMC. Any questions should be promptly directed to the 
compliance officer. 

 
2.7 Ethics and Avoiding Conflicts of Interest 

 
The successful operation and reputation of CCMC is built upon the ethical conduct of our 
employees. Our reputation for integrity and excellence requires careful observance of the 
spirit and letter of all applicable laws and regulations, as well as a scrupulous regard for the 
highest standards of conduct and personal integrity. 
CCMC will comply with all applicable laws and regulations and expects its employees to 
conduct business in accordance with the letter, spirit, and intent of all relevant laws and to 

22



 

Page 12 of 54  

refrain from any illegal, dishonest, or unethical conduct. The examples in this policy are not 
exhaustive and are designed to give you basic guidelines regarding ethical principles. 

 
Ethical principles require that you not take advantage of your position at CCMC to profit 
personally from any confidential or proprietary information that you receive during your 
employment. 

 
During your employment you are expected to give patients and residents the most efficient 
and professional care without expecting any reward beyond your regular pay. You may not 
ask for or accept a material gift from a patient, resident or vendor. Material gifts include 
substantial favors, money, free or discounted goods or services, trips, lodging, entertainment 
or other similar items. CCMC employees must politely but firmly refuse such gifts. 

 
It is a conflict of interest if you have an interest outside of work that interferes with your 
responsibilities to CCMC or affects your ability to perform your duties properly. You must 
avoid conflicts of interest and situations where there might be the appearance of a conflict of 
interest. You may accept outside employment only so long as it does not create a conflict of 
interest or interfere with your job performance at CCMC. Employees are required to notify 
their Department Manager if they work for another employer so that potential conflicts of 
interest can be investigated. 

 
Failure to disclose a potential conflict of interest may result in discipline. Questions 
regarding ethical issues and potential conflicts of interest should be discussed with the 
Compliance Officer or the Administrator/CEO. 
 
 
 
 

 
3. HIRING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
3.1 Prerequisites to Commencing Employment 

 

3.1.1 Pre-employment Drug Testing 
 

In accordance with CCMC’s Drug and Alcohol Testing policy, applicants who have 
been given a conditional offer of employment must pass a drug-test before 
commencing to perform services for CCMC. Applicants are responsible for 
completing required testing in advance of the date they are scheduled to start work. 
If an employee is unable, unavailable, or otherwise fails to complete the screening 
in advance of the reporting date, the first day of work may be rescheduled until the 
screen is completed and passed, or CCMC may withdraw or otherwise modify its 
offer of employment in its discretion. 

 
3.1.2 Criminal Background Checks 

 
Applicants who have been given a conditional offer of employment must also 
undergo or update an employment and personal reference, and criminal background 
checks. Background clearance must be maintained throughout each employee’s 
employment with CCMC. Employees must promptly report any changes in their 
criminal background to Human Resources. 

 
3.1.3  Licensure and Certifications 
Employees required by state or federal law to be licensed, certified or registered to 

23



 

Page 13 of 54  

practice a healthcare profession must demonstrate licensure, certification or 
registration upon hire and maintain such credentials throughout their employment 
with CCMC. Failure to do so may result in immediate dismissal or result in CCMC 
withdrawing or modifying an offer of employment. 

 
3.1.4 Verification of Employment Eligibility 

 
In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new 
employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment 
Eligibility Verification Form I-9 and present documentation establishing identity 
and employment eligibility. 

 
3.1.5 Health Screening. 

 
Screening for tuberculosis, varicella, and hepatitis A and B must be completed 
before an employee commences to perform services for CCMC. A medical exam 
also may be required, depending on the functions of your position.  On or before 
the date you are scheduled to commence work, Human Resources will refer you 
to the Employee Health Nurse, for completion of CCMC’s required employee 
health forms. 

 
All CCMC employees are required to have a yearly tuberculosis screening. The 
Employee Health Nurse, according to appropriate protocol, will coordinate required 
screening. Hepatitis A and B vaccinations, Covid-19 and flu vaccinations (when 
available) are provided to all employees at no cost. Periodic screening for 
communicable diseases (i.e., Covid-19 or Influenza) may be required. The 
employee has the right to decline screening and/or vaccination for infectious 
diseases. The employee must sign a waiver stating they are declining the vaccine or 
screening tests. By declining the screening or vaccination of communicable illness, 
they may also be forfeiting the employment. 

 
3.2 Orientation. 

 
New employees meet with the Human Resources Assistant, IT Coordinator and Employee 
Health on their first day. Director of Support Service will create the new employee systems 
accesses, assign Corporate Compliance and Relias training. Human Resource Assistant will 
provide facility orientation, schedule Employee Health appointment. Director of Support 
Services will introduce the new employee to policies, create ADP access Employee, 
depending on the employee’s status will receive information on benefits. IT Coordinator will 
create employee ID, educate on electronic systems used in The Medical Center. Your 
Department Manager will advise you of the job specific orientation process applicable to your 
position. Any questions concerning orientation should be directed first to your Department 
Manager, and then to Human Resources, if necessary. 

 
3.3 Introductory Period. 

 
New employees, rehires and transfers are subject to a 6-month probationary period. 
During this time, the employee participates actively in any orientation and training 
applicable to the position, as well as ongoing assessments of his/her skills and suitability 
for the job position. 
Assessments may be informal, and a formal written evaluation may not be provided. The 
introductory period may be extended, if deemed appropriate by the Administrator/CEO 
upon recommendation by the employee’s Department Manager, to obtain more 
information and understanding about the employee’s skills, training and abilities. If the 

24



 

Page 14 of 54  

Medical Center determines that the employee is not suited for the position, separation 
may occur at any time. Completion of the introductory period should not be construed 
as creating a contract nor guarantee of employment for any specific duration. All 
employees are considered “at-will” at all times and for all purposes. 
Introductory employees accrue but are not eligible to use PTO during the first three (3) 
months of the introductory period, except as approved by the Administrator/CEO Leave 
authorized for personal needs during the first three months of the introductory period, other 
than sickness or bereavement, will be unpaid and will be offered at the sole discretion of 
CCMC and only with the approval of the Administrator/CEO. 

 
3.4 Personnel Records 

 
Your personnel file (including all component files) is maintained by the Human Resources 
Department. To keep insurance benefits and records of employment up to date, notify 
Human Resources and your Department Manager of any change in name, address, marital 
status, dependents, telephone number, citizenship, person to notify in case of emergency, and 
registration, certification, or licensure. All employee records are held and maintained in 
confidence and in compliance with state and federal laws. No information is released to third 
parties without written authorization from the employee, by court order, or as otherwise 
permitted by law. 

 
Employees are permitted to review their personnel file in the presence of the Human 
Resources Manager with reasonable advance notice during regular business hours. Copies 
will be provided upon written request from the employee with advance payment of the 
reasonable cost of copying. 

 
3.5 Nepotism 

 
No person may be employed in a position directly supervised by another family member. If 
an employee and his/her Department Manager should marry, they shall elect which employee 
may continue with the department, and which employee shall apply for a new position within 
the facility, or who will terminate employment. If that decision is not made within 30 
calendar days, CCMC will decide the matter based on the qualifications and staffing needs 
of the Medical Center. 

 
For purposes of the nepotism policy, “family member(s)” means spouses, parents, children, 
brothers, sisters, brothers and sisters-in-law, fathers and mothers-in-law, stepparents, 
stepbrothers, stepsisters and stepchildren. This policy also applies to individuals who are not 
legally related but who reside with another employee. 
 

4. COMPENSATION 
 

4.1 Employment Classifications 
 

Employees are classified into certain categories, listed below, which may impact 
compensation and benefits. The term “employee” does not include individuals hired on an 
independent contractor basis. 

 
4.1.1 Full-time regular employee: 

 
An employee regularly assigned to work a predetermined schedule of 60-80 hours 
per pay period. 
 

25



 

Page 15 of 54  

4.1.2 Part-time regular employee: 
An employee regularly assigned to work a predetermined schedule of 30-59 hours per 
pay period. 

 
4.1.3 Temporary employee: 

 
An employee hired as an interim replacement for temporary or seasonal work. A 
temporary employee’s length of service will not exceed twelve months. The 
duration of each assignment will be determined and documented at the date of hire. 
Temporary employees are not eligible for PERS. 

 
4.1.4 Volunteers: 

 
Although volunteers are not employees of the Medical Center, they are required to 
comply with all relevant laws, policies, and rules of the facility. Refer any questions 
concerning volunteer opportunities, volunteer activities or functions to Human 
Resources or the Administrator/CEO. 

 

4.1.5 Casual Employee: 
 

Casual employees work with no set hour or days of work and are normally asked to 
work as and when shifts are needed. Casual employees understand there is no firm 
advance commitment to ongoing work or an agreed upon pattern of work. 

 
CCMC shall offer all casual employees the option to convert to full time or part-
time permanent employment following 12 months casual status, but these 
employees may elect to continue casual status. Causal status employees are not 
eligible for PERS. 

 
4.2 Position Changes by Administration 

 
Position changes and reclassification may be made by CCMC at any time, based on the needs 
of CCMC. Such changes may result in changes to personnel assignments, classification, 
compensation, required skills, assigned hours, and essential job functions. Changes may 
impact one or more positions or individuals. Management may transfer an employee, modify 
or reorganize a position, or make other changes needed to achieve the interests of the Medical 
Center. Changes which are substantially based on disciplinary, or performance grounds may 
be grieved in accordance with the Grievance Policy, Section 12 if the employee has achieved 
regular status. Separation procedures are addressed in Section 9. Performance grounds are 
addressed in section 7. 

 
Due to CCMC’s needs or at an employee’s request, employment status may be changed (e.g., 
going from regular to temporary). When such a change is made effective, appropriate changes 
in benefit accrual will take place. This will include items such as paid time off accrual and 
insurance coverage. 

 
4.2.1 Change of Position 

 
If an employee changes positions within the Medical Center, the Employee will be 
subject to a six (6) month probationary period. 

 
4.2.2 Reasonable notice of a demotion 

26



 

Page 16 of 54  

 
(Up to 2 weeks) will be provided by management. Changes in job descriptions 
from time to time do not qualify as demotions. 
 
 

 
4.3 Wage and Hour Job Classification 

 
All employees are further classified for purposes of minimum wages and overtime laws:  

 
4.3.1 Exempt: 

 
An employee who is not subject to overtime and minimum wage laws under the 
federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 
4.3.2 Non-exempt: 

 
An employee who is subject to overtime compensation as defined by the 
Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 
4.4 Workday and Workweek 

 

4.4.1 Workday. 
 

The definition of workday for purposes of payroll and overtime calculations is 12:00 
a.m. to 11:59 p.m. However, the Medical Center may establish shift schedules in 
order to avoid calculating a single shift on two separate calendar dates. Each shift 
is recorded on the applicable workday in which the shift began. 

 
4.4.2 Work Week. 

 
The workweek is defined as 12:00 am Sunday through 11:59 pm Saturday. 

 
4.5 Timekeeping. 

 
Exempt employees record their days worked utilizing the electronic pay system, for 
purposes of calculating pay, benefits, and the accrual and use of leave. 

 
Non-Exempt employees will be held accountable for using the electronic web-based time clock. 

 
Under no circumstances should any employee fill out a time sheet for another employee or 
have another employee fill out their time sheet. All employees are subject to this policy and are 
required to accurately record all time worked and all break periods. In the event of 
noncompliance with this policy, an employee may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge from employment. Time worked is all the time actually spent on the job 
performing assigned duties. The minimum increment for time reporting is 15 minutes. Time 
between 7 minutes and 15 minutes should be recorded as 15 minutes. An employee’s electronic 
submission of the time sheet is considered a certification that the document provides a true and 
correct statement of dates and time actually worked. Time off that is eligible for pay or leave 
without pay shall be designated using a leave description. The employee’s Department 
Manager reviews time sheets and submits them to payroll through the electronic payroll 
system. 

27



 

Page 17 of 54  

 
 
 
 
 
4.6 Payroll 

 

4.6.1 Pay Period/Paydays. 
 

CCMC’s pay period is biweekly, with scheduled paydays every other Friday after 
the end of the pay period. 

 
4.6.2 Direct Deposit. 

 
Employees will have paychecks electronically deposited into a checking and/or 
savings account. The employee has access through the electronic payroll system of 
their pay stub in lieu of a pay stub on payday detailing the direct deposit. 

 
4.6.3 Payroll Deductions. 

 
All contributions required by federal or state law or by benefit plans (to include 
PERS), will be deducted from the employees’ paychecks, and reflected in the 
summary attached. Other deductions may be withheld as authorized by written 
agreement with the employee. 

4.6.4        Pay Advances. 
An employee may request a payroll advance only in a serious emergency, with the 
approval of the Administrator/CEO in his or her sole discretion. The employee must 
complete and sign the Request for Payroll Advance form, providing two days’ 
advance notice to the Payroll Office. An advance may not exceed 90% of the 
employee’s net pay for hours worked to-date that pay period. The amount of the 
advance will be automatically deducted from the employee’s next paycheck. An 
individual employee may receive no more than a single payroll advance in a 
calendar year. 

 
4.7 Wage Scale. 

Compensation and Pay Increases 
 

Compensation increases are determined based on the Board-approved policy that 
aligns with the salary pay bands for Alaska hospitals. Pay increases are merit-based 
and are influenced by the employee’s annual performance review conducted by 
their manager. 

 
Each employee's pay will be reviewed and adjusted within the established pay scale for 
their specific job role, considering both the market rate and individual performance. 
Raises are not guaranteed and will depend on the employee's performance, contributions 
to the organization, and compliance with organizational goals and expectations.  
 
 
 
 
4.8  Shift Differential. 

 

28



 

Page 18 of 54  

Non-exempt employees may be eligible for shift differential pay, as defined herein. A shift 
is recorded on the calendar day on which the shift began. Each workday, all hours are 
recorded and paid according to the shift that includes the majority (more than half) of the 
hours worked. R.N., L.P.N., and C.N.A.’s are eligible for the Night Shift Differential. Other 
non-exempt employees asked by the Administrator/CEO or their Department Manager to 
work night shift hours may be eligible for shift differential pay for working Night Shift hours 
with approval of the Administrator/CEO. 

 
4.8.1 Night Shift Differential: 

 
Night shift differential is 12% of the base rate of pay. Shifts are defined as follows: 
Night Shift: A shift in which greater than 50% of the employee’s hours worked 
occur between 6:00 pm and 6:00 am. Day Shift: A shift in which greater than 50% of 
the employee’s hours worked occur between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Equal Day and 
Night Shift: If an employee works equal hours in the Day Shift and Night Shift, the 
base day rate is paid for Day Shift hours with shift differential paid for Night Shift 
hours. 

 
4.8.2 Night Shift Differential and Time Off: 

 
Night Shift Differential applies to Holiday Worked hours. Night Shift differential 
does not apply to Holiday Pay, PTO, Bereavement, or any other forms of paid 
time off. 

 
4.9 Overtime. 

 
Overtime is calculated based on actual hours worked which includes only hours worked 
and hours worked during call-back. PTO, holidays, on-call hours and other types of time 
off do not count for determining if overtime is due. Compensation for overtime is paid at 
one- and one-half times the base rate of pay for hours worked over 40 in a workweek. 
Overtime hours accrued on a daily basis do not accumulate for calculation of overtime 
toward a 40-hour week. Shift Differential will be included in the overtime calculation 
when paid as defined in section 4.8. Every attempt is made to schedule work so that the 
need for overtime is kept to a minimum. However, situations may arise which make 
overtime unavoidable. In such cases, your Department Manager may schedule you to work 
overtime. Overtime work must be pre-approved. Overtime compensation is available 
only to non-exempt personnel entitled to be paid overtime wages for overtime work under 
the Federal 

 
Fair Labor Standards Act. Although non-exempt employees of CCMC are not legally entitled 
to receive overtime pay for hours worked more than 8 hours per workday under the Alaska 
Wage and Hour Act, CCMC voluntarily pays overtime compensation for hours worked in 
excess of 8 hours per workday for most positions, with the exception of certain signed shift 
arrangements. CCMC may modify or eliminate this voluntary policy with or without advance 
notice in its sole discretion. 
 

 
4.10 On-Call Compensation 

Non-exempt employees required to be on-call may be eligible to receive a flat hourly rate for 
hours spent available to take on-call work assignments. The on-call schedule is managed by 
the Department Manager. Non-exempt employees required to report to work as a result of 
being on- call shall receive one and one-half times the employee’s base rate of pay for all 
hours actually worked when called in. An employee called in to work shall receive a minimum 
of one hour of pay at the applicable rate.  

29



 

Page 19 of 54  

4.11 Breaks and Meal Periods 
 

Non-Exempt employees will be scheduled by their Department Managers for scheduled 
breaks and meal periods based upon the number of hours an employee is scheduled to work 
and based upon the needs of the facility. For every workday of 6 hours or more, non-exempt 
employees may take an unpaid meal period of 30 consecutive minutes up to one hour. Breaks 
(no more than 15 minutes) are paid time worked; meal breaks (30 minutes) are unpaid if the 
employee is released to use the time for their own purposes. 

 
Breaks and meal periods may not be accumulated or delayed in order to leave work early or 
take an extended meal period on another workday. 
 
4.12 Holidays 

 
CCMC has established holiday policies designed to accommodate a 7-day per week/24-
hour day operation. CCMC recognizes and pays nine (9) holidays annually. 

 
4.12.1 Recognized Holidays 

 
CCMC recognizes the following holidays: 

 
New Year’s Day ..................... January 1st  
President’s Day ...................... 3rd Monday in February 
Seward’s Day ......................... Last Monday in March 
Memorial Day ........................ Last Monday in May 
Fourth of July ......................... July 4th  
Labor Day ............................. 1st Monday in September 
Thanksgiving…..................... 4th Thursday in November 
Day after Thanksgiving……..4th Friday in November 
Christmas .............................. December 25th  

 
4.12.2 Time Off on Holiday 

 
When a recognized holiday falls on the day an employee is normally scheduled to 
work, that employee must take the holiday off unless asked by the 
Administrator/CEO or Department Manager, to work that day. The exception to 
this shall be non-exempt staff members deemed essential such as R.N.’s, 
L.P.N.’s, C.N.A.’s, Housekeeping, and Dietary staff members. When a 
recognized holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be recognized 
as the holiday. When a recognized holidays falls on a Sunday, the following 
Monday shall be recognized as the holiday. 

 
4.12.3 Compensation for Holidays Not Worked. 

 
A full-time regular employee not required to work on a recognized holiday shall be 
paid eight (8) hours of Holiday Pay at the employee’s base rate of pay. A part-time 
regular employee not required to work on a recognized holiday shall be paid four 
(4) hours of Holiday Pay at the employee’s base rate of pay. PTO time does not accrue 
during an unpaid leave. If you run out of paid time off while on FMLA and a holiday 
fall in the time in which you are on unpaid leave, you will not be paid for that 
holiday. 

 

30



 

Page 20 of 54  

4.12.4 Compensation for Holiday Worked – Non-Exempt Personnel 
 

When a non-exempt employee is required to work the actual (not recognized date) 
holiday by the Department Manager, the employee shall receive Holiday Pay as 
defined above, plus one and one-half times their base rate of pay, plus any  
applicable overtime and shift differential. If an employee is on call and called 
back to work, they shall receive two- times their base rate of pay, plus any 
applicable overtime and shift differential. 

 

4.12.5 Holiday Pay for Holidays Falling on a Weekend 
When a recognized holiday falls on a weekend, and the holiday is observed on the 
following weekday, employees who work on both the actual holiday (Saturday or 
Sunday) and the observed holiday (Monday or Friday) will be compensated at the 
holiday rate of time and a half for hours worked on both days. 
This policy ensures that all employees working on both the actual holiday and the 
observed holiday receive appropriate compensation for their time. 

 
4.12.6 Compensation for Holiday Worked- Exempt Personnel 

 
An employee in a position that is FLSA exempt and who is required to work on a 
recognized holiday shall, at the discretion of the Administrator/CEO, receive a 
compensatory day off to be used within thirty days of the recognized holiday. 

 
5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 
5.1 Paid Time Off (PTO) 

 
Paid Time Off is the employee leave program adopted to provide paid time off for rest, 
relaxation, personal needs and illness. PTO is earned through service time. PTO covers both 
vacation, personal, and sick time off, and includes both scheduled and unscheduled absences. 

 
PTO accrual is capped, in order to encourage employees to take their accrued leave in a prompt 
and regular manner, as provided below. 
 

 
5.1.1 Accrual 

 
Eligible employees accrue PTO each pay period according to the number of hours 
paid per pay period (not to exceed a base of 80 hours), and FTE hours of service. 
Only regular full- time and part-time employees are eligible for PTO. PTO is 
accrued while on PTO. 
 
5.1.2 Rate Schedule 

 
Length of Service PTO Accrued Per Hour Worked 

(incl. Holidays) 
PTO Accrued Per Year (FTE) 

0 – 4,160 hrs (0-2 yrs completed) 0.096154 200 hrs (25 days) 
4,161–10,400hrs(2-5yrs completed) 0.115385 240 hrs (30 days) 
10,401–20,800hrs (5+yrs completed) 0.134616 280 hrs (35 days) 

 

31



 

Page 21 of 54  

Employees who are not full-time status accrue PTO pro rata, at the rate 
indicated in the PTO Accrued Per Hour Worked column for fewer hours and 
will not accrue the full FTE amount per year. PTO accrual is based on actual 
hours worked. FTE years in the chart above are estimated based upon a 40-
hour work week. 
 

5.1.3 Use of PTO 
 

To ensure adequate staffing, each Department Manager will schedule and approve 
PTO requests. Each Department may set standards for planning leave in advance, 
subject to approval by the Administrator/CEO. The amount of or blocks of 
consecutive weeks of leave may be limited, depending on the needs of the facility 
or department and the timing of the request. Requests for over two weeks of PTO 
at one time must be reviewed and approved by the Administrator/CEO. Employees 
may not use PTO during their introductory period, except with prior approval of the 
Administrator/CEO as provided in Section 3.3 of this Handbook. 

 
PTO must be accrued before it can be taken. PTO cannot be advanced and an 
employee cannot draw their PTO bank into a negative balance. If you run out of 
PTO while on an approved absence, you may be treated as in violation of CCMC’s 
attendance policy unless you received advance approval to take unpaid time off. 
PTO is deducted from the employee’s leave bank based on his/her regular work 
schedule. PTO can be taken in quarter-hour segments when needed. PTO use 
should be in accordance with the employee status. If an employee’s normal work 
week is 36 hours, the employee will be required to use 36 PTO hours per week 
while on PTO. If an employee’s normal work week is 40 hours, the employee will 
be required to use 40 PTO hours per week while on PTO. Part- time employees will 
be required to use no less than 20 hours per week. No more than 40 hours of PTO 
per week can be used for any position. 

 
An employee in a position that is FLSA exempt is required to use PTO for partial 
or full days. Deductions from PTO are made for partial day absences of any length. 
An employee that is in a FLSA exempt position is not required to take PTO for an 
absence in a week in which the employee works more than 40 hours. 
 
Sick leave cannot be denied or delayed if the absence qualifies under Alaska sick 
leave protections. 

 
5.1.4 PTO Carryover and Forfeiture 

 
To encourage employees to schedule and take their leave on an ongoing basis, the 
Medical Center caps leave accrual at 320 hours of PTO. PTO amounts accrued 
beyond 320 will be forfeited. When an employee reaches 280 hours of accrued 
PTO, the Medical Center will notify them of the need to meet with their Department 
Manager and establish a plan to use sufficient leave to remain below the cap of 320 
hours. 
 
5.1.5 Donated Leave 

 
Co-workers will be allowed to donate accrued leave to another employee who has 
exhausted their leave benefit for: a serious medical issue; or an extraordinary 
circumstance that would require time away from work. All leave donation requests 
will be reviewed and approved by the Administrator/CEO. Employees may donate 
up to 40 hours of their PTO annually to other Medical Center employees in the event 

32



 

Page 22 of 54  

the receiving employee is experiencing an illness or emergency and has exhausted 
their PTO and has no IAP available. To ensure that a co-worker is not exhausting 
his/her own leave balances (both annual and bank) by donating leave, they must 
retain a total of at least 80 hours of leave. Medical Center employees may accept a 
maximum of 160 hours of donated PTO per fiscal year. All donations will remain 
anonymous. Employees are prohibited from lobbying for leave donations. Leave 
donated will be based on donor's hourly rate. Cash-in of donated leave is not 
allowed, and donated leave will not be paid out to the receiving employee upon 
termination of employment for any reason. 
 
5.1.6 Alaska Sick Leave Compliance 

 
Effective July 1, 2025, CCMC will comply with the Alaska Paid Sick Leave Law. 
The law requires all employees, including full-time, part-time, temporary, and 
casual workers, to accrue paid sick leave. 
 
To meet this requirement, CCMC tracks designated sick leave hours congruent with 
PTO or other hours, as follows: 
 
Full-Time and Part-Time Regular Employees 
These employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) according to CCMC’s standard 
accrual schedule. All PTO hours may be used for any qualifying sick leave reason 
under state law, including personal illness, medical appointments, or caring for a 
family member. No additional sick leave is accrued outside of PTO. 
PTO used for sick leave purposes will be tracked congruently to meet the state’s 
required sick leave documentation and reporting. 
 
Temporary and Casual Employees 
Employees who are not eligible for PTO under CCMC policy will accrue paid sick 
leave at the rate of 1 hour for every 30 hours worked, beginning on their first day 
of employment. These employees may accrue up to 56 hours of paid sick leave per 
year, with unused hours carrying over. A maximum of 56 hours of sick leave can 
be used a year. Sick leave may be used for any qualifying reason as defined under 
Alaska law. Sick leave is not paid out at termination. 
 
Tracking and Documentation 
“Congruent use” means that when PTO is used for sick leave purposes, CCMC will 
document those hours as both PTO and state-required sick leave. This approach 
does not reduce or increase available time but ensures CCMC remains compliant 
with tracking rules under Alaska law. 
 

5.2 Employee Benefit Plans 
 

CCMC sponsors and/or participates in several welfare and retirement plans for the benefit of 
eligible employees, including health, life and Alaska PERS. Detailed information regarding 
these benefits is contained in summary plan descriptions, insurance policies, CCMC’s 
official plan documents, and the plan documents maintained by the PERS system. CCMC has 
sole discretion to interpret the employee benefit plan documents, including questions of 
eligibility, availability or amount of benefits, terms, conditions and limitations. The official 
plan documents and not this handbook or any other document or verbal representation will 
govern CCMC’s determination of all questions regarding plan benefits. 

 
Employees are encouraged to contact the Human Resources Department for further 
information about the plans, including eligibility requirements for CCMC sponsored 
benefits. 

33



 

Page 23 of 54  

 
While it is CCMC’s present intention to continue these benefits for the indefinite future, 
CCMC reserves the right to amend, modify, curtail, reduce or eliminate any benefit, in whole 
or in part at any time. No amendment or termination will take away vested benefits. 
However, future accruals or benefits any be reduced or eliminated. Neither the benefit 
programs nor their descriptions are intended to create any guarantees regarding employment 
or continued employment. 

 
 5.2.1 Eligibility In General 

 
Some employee benefits are provided to CCMC employees based on job 
classification and hours of service. Eligible employee benefits start on the first of 
the month following the date of hire. The chart below describes typical breakdown, 
however, the requirements and restrictions contained in the official plan documents 
will determine eligibility for any benefit plans. 

 
Employee Status Eligible for Benefits Eligible for PTO Eligible for 

Holiday Pay 
Full-time Regular Yes Yes 8 hours 
Part-time Regular Yes Yes 4 hours 
Temporary No No No 
Casual No No No 

 
5.2.2 Group Health Insurance 

 
CCMC provides eligible employees with an opportunity to participate in its group 
major medical, dental, and vision benefits programs designed to assist employees 
and their eligible dependents in meeting the financial burdens that can result from 
injury or illness. The terms of eligibility and participation are set forth in the official 
plan documents, which can be obtained from Human Resources. 

 
5.2.3 Life Insurance 

 
Regular full-time and part-time employees are eligible for group life insurance the first 
of the month following date of employment. Eligible employees receive $10,000 of 
basic life insurance and may be able to purchase supplemental life insurance coverage at 
their own cost, as well as spouse and dependent(s) coverage. 

5.2.4 Retirement Plan (PERS) 
 

CCMC is a participant in the State of Alaska’s Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS). Coverage is mandatory for all full-time and part-time regular 
employees. Retirement benefits and other details regarding the retirement system 
may be obtained from Payroll or by contacting PERS directly. 

 
5.2.5 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 

 
A range of issues (i.e., emotional, physical, and mental conditions, family and 
marital stress, financial difficulties, addiction or substance abuse) may impair or 
negatively impact an employee’s job performance. The Medical Center provides 
access to an EAP at Sound Alternatives, which provides confidential assistance to 
employees and eligible family members who are struggling with issues similar to 
those listed above. 

 

34



 

Page 24 of 54  

5.2.6 Long Term Disability 
 

Regular full-time employees are eligible for group Long Term Disability insurance 
effective the first of the month following date of employment. The cost of this 
benefit is paid for by The Medical Center. 

 
6. LEAVE POLICIES 

 
6.1 Family & Medical Leave. 

 
The Alaska Family Leave Act (AFLA) (Chapter 96 SLA 1992) became effective September 16, 1992 
and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) became effective August 5, 1993. 
The Acts promote preservation of the integrity and stability of the family unit, job security for the 
employee, as well as accommodating the legitimate business interests of the employer. 

• The AFLA provides a job-protected absence for up to 18 weeks in a 24-month period to 
eligible employees for a qualifying serious medical condition. It also provides a job-
protected absence for up to 18 weeks in a 12-month period to eligible employees for 
pregnancy, childbirth or adoption. 

• The FMLA provides a job protected absence for up to 12 weeks in a 12-month period to 
eligible employees for a qualifying condition. 

 
6.1.1 Eligibility For Leave 
To be eligible for State of Alaska (AFLA) an employee must have worked for 
CCMC for at least 35 hours per week for six consecutive months or 17.5 hours per 
week for twelve consecutive months. The rolling backward method applies as well. 
Under this method, an employee will not be eligible for family medical leave if the 
employee has taken eighteen weeks of family and medical leave in the twelve 
calendar months (or twenty-four months, if appropriate) immediately preceding 
each day of leave requested. 
 
6.1.2 Reasons Eligible employees may be granted FMLA or State FMLA (AFLA) 

 

A. Birth or placement of a child 
 

Eligible employees may request a leave of absence to provide care for a 
child following the child's birth, adoption, or foster placement in the 
employee's home. For AFLA this leave must be taken within 24 months 
after the child is born, adopted or placed in the employee's home. Where 
both the mother and father of a newborn, adopted or foster child are eligible 
employees of CCMC, they are jointly entitled to a total of eighteen weeks of 
unpaid FMLA and State AFLA leave to care for the child. The eighteen 
weeks may be divided between them as they agree. 
 
In accordance with the Pregnant Workers Fairness Act, CCMC will 
provide reasonable accommodations for employees affected by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or related medical conditions, unless doing so would cause 
undue hardship. Examples include more frequent breaks, light duty, 
temporary transfer, or modified work schedules. Employees seeking 
accommodations should notify Human Resources. 
 

 
B. Illness of a family member 

 
Eligible employees may request a leave of absence to provide care for a 

35



 

Page 25 of 54  

child, parent or spouse who has a serious health condition. 
 

C. Illness of an employee 
 

Eligible employees may also request a leave of absence if they are unable 
to work due to their own serious health condition. 

 
6.1.3 Military Family Leave. 

 
Leave is also available under FMLA and allows for up to 26 weeks of unpaid leave 
during a single 12-month period for an employee to care for an injured/ill service 
member who is recovering from an illness or injury sustained in the line of duty on 
active duty. The service member must be the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next 
of kin of the covered service member. CCMC requires that you use your paid leave 
(PTO) for Military Family Leave. Certain Exigency Leave is available for the 
spouse, son, daughter, or parent of an employee who is on active duty or has been 
notified of an impending call to active-duty status, in support of a contingency 
operation. In such cases, up to 12 weeks of leave may be available. Please see the 
Human Resources Manager for further information on these types of leave or review 
the FMLA rights poster on the bulletin board. 

 
6.1.4 When Medical Certification Is Required. 

 
Employees may be required to provide a medical certification (on a form supplied 

by CCMC) supporting the need for leave due to a serious health condition affecting 
the employee or a family member. If the employee is taking leave on an intermittent or 
reduced work schedule basis, then the medical certification should indicate that such 
a leave schedule is medically necessary. Where requested, the medical certificate 
must be received by CCMC prior to the commencement of leave. However, if the 
need for leave was unforeseen, CCMC should receive the medical certification no 
later than fifteen calendar days from the date the employee requests leave. 
Employees may be required to provide second or third medical opinions or periodic 
recertifications at CCMC’s expense. Employees may be required to provide periodic 
reports during leave regarding their status and intent to return to work. Prior to 
returning to work from leave due to his or her own serious health condition, an 
employee must provide CCMC with a fitness for duty certification from the 
employee’s health care provider stating that the employee is able to perform the 
essential functions of the employee’s position. If an employee who is required to 
provide such a certification fails to do so, CCMC will not restore the employee to 
employment until such a certification is provided. 

 
6.1.5 Compensation 

 
FMLA/AFLA leave is unpaid, however, CCMC requires employees eligible for 
FMLA or Military Family Leave to exhaust their accumulated PTO/IAP. CCMC 
has no obligation to pay you more than any accumulated PTO, which must be used 
at the beginning of your leave (Paid time off is counted as part of the FMLA/AFLA 
State Leave entitlement, (not in addition to it). PTO time does not accrue during an 
unpaid leave. Paid holidays are counted as part of the FMLA leave and do not serve 
to “extend” the leave when taking into account the holiday time. If you run out of 
paid time off while on FMLA and a holiday fall in the time in which you are on 
unpaid leave, you will not be paid for that holiday. Where appropriate, CCMC will 
coordinate an employee’s workers’ compensation leave with FMLA/State AFLA 
leave so that the two run concurrently. FMLA/State AFLA leave shall run 

36



 

Page 26 of 54  

concurrently with any other qualifying leave. 
 

6.1.6 Benefits Continuation 
 

Group Health Benefits 
Employees may continue their CCMC group health insurance coverage during 
family or medical leave on the same terms as before such leave. If the employee 
elects to continue group health coverage, the employee will be required to pay 
CCMC the employee’s portion of the insurance premium for all time away up to 18 
weeks. Payment will be automatically deducted from the employee’s paycheck 
while on paid leave. When paid leave is exhausted, the employee is responsible for 
contacting the Payroll Office regarding the options available to them to pay for 
continued health insurance during the unpaid portion of their FMLA leave. CCMC 
may recover from an employee its portion of the premiums paid to maintain an 
employee’s health insurance coverage during leave if the employee: (1) fails to 
return to work after the employee’s leave entitlement has expired or (2) fails to work 
at least thirty days after returning from leave. CCMC may not recover its premiums 
paid on behalf of the employee if the employee’s failure to return to work is due to 
(1) the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition or (2) other 
circumstances beyond the employee’s control. An employee who fails to return 
from leave will be deemed to have terminated employment voluntarily and may be 
entitled to elect COBRA continuation coverage of CCMC’s group health benefits. 

 
Life Insurance 
An employee who is on unpaid FMLA leave may continue his or her life insurance 
by paying the full premium cost for coverage. Such employees should consult the 
Human Resources regarding the options available to them to pay for continued life 
insurance. 

 
6.1.7  Job Restoration 

 
Upon returning from FMLA leave, an employee will be restored to his or her 
original job, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other 
employment terms and conditions. An employee’s use of FMLA leave will not 
result in the loss of any employment benefit that the employee would have been 
entitled to if the employee had not taken leave. 

 
6.1.8 Key Employees 

 
Upon requesting FMLA/State AFLA leave, CCMC will inform the employee if the 
employee is considered a key employee. CCMC may inform a key employee while 
the employee is on FMLA/State AFLA leave that if the employee does not return 
to work immediately CCMC will suffer substantial and grievous economic harm. 
CCMC will offer the key employee a reasonable opportunity to return to work after 
giving this notice. CCMC may deny job restoration to the key employee if the 
employee does not return to work after receiving such notice. The key employee 
will then be permanently replaced with no right of job restoration. 
 
6.1.9 Fitness for Duty 

 
Employees on FMLA leave must notify CCMC at least two weeks prior to the end 
of the leave of their availability and capacity to return to work. CCMC requires 
medical certification of fitness to return to duty before an employee will be 

37



 

Page 27 of 54  

permitted to return to work. An employee's failure to return from leave, or failure 
to contact CCMC on the scheduled date of return are grounds for termination. 

 
6.1.10 Employee Notice 

 
Eligible employees seeking to use FMLA leave are required to provide: 

 
30-day advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is 
foreseeable; Notice “as soon as p r a c t i c a l ” when the need to take FMLA 
leave is not foreseeable. Except in the most extraordinary circumstances, this 
requires you to report your need for FMLA leave before the start of your shift in 
accordance with the normal absence-reporting procedures; Sufficient information 
for CCMC to understand that the employee needs leave for FMLA- qualifying 
reasons (the employee need not mention FMLA when requesting leave to meet this 
requirement but must provide sufficient information to put CCMC on notice that the 
absence may be FMLA-protected); and 
Where CCMC was not made aware that an employee was absent for FMLA reasons, 
leave will be retroactively designated as FMLA leave. 

 
6.1.11 Employer Notice 

 
In addition to the information provided in this Handbook, CCMC has taken the 
following steps to provide information to employees about FMLA: 

 
Posted a notice explaining your rights and responsibilities under FMLA-see the 
Notice of Rights Under FMLA on the bulletin board. 

 
Provided a written notice designating the leave as FMLA leave and detailing 
specific expectations and obligations of an employee who is exercising his/her 
FMLA entitlements within five business days after we have received the notice of 
need for leave. If your leave is not FMLA-protected, the notice will inform you of 
the reason. 

 
Provided you a notice of eligibility, informing you whether or not the leave you are 
requesting qualified under FMLA. Employees on worker's compensation leave will 
also be placed on FMLA leave, to the extent the employee is eligible, and the absence 
qualifies under both laws. In such cases, the two types of leave will run 
simultaneously. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6.1.12 Definitions 

 
Child 

 
Anyone under 18 years who is the employee's biological, adopted, or foster 
child, stepchild, legal ward, or an adult legally dependent child. This may 
also include a child for whom the employee has day-to-day responsibility. 
 

Continuing Treatment 

38



 

Page 28 of 54  

 
One or more of the following: 
• treatment two or more times by a health care provider. Normally 

this would require visits to the health care provider or to a nurse or 
physician assistant under direct supervision of the health care 
provider. 

• treatment two or more times by a provider of health care services 
(for example, a physical therapist) under orders of, or on referral by, 
a health care provider, or treatment by a health care provider on at 
least one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing 
treatment under the supervision of the health care provider (for 
example, a course of medication or therapy) to resolve the 
condition. 

• continuing supervision of, but not necessarily active treatment 
by, a health care provider due to a serious long-term or chronic 
condition or disability which cannot be cured (for example, 
Alzheimer’s, a severe stroke, or the terminal stage of a disease). 

 
Health Care Provider. 

 
• a Doctor of Medicine or osteopathy authorized to practice medicine 

or surgery by the state; 
• a podiatrist, physician’s assistant, dentist, clinical psychologist, 

optometrist or chiropractor (limited to manual manipulation of 
the spine to correct a subluxation as demonstrated by X-ray to 
exist) authorized to practice, and performing within the scope of 
that practice, under state law; 

• a nurse practitioner or nurse-midwife authorized to practice, and 
performing within the scope of that practice, as defined under state 
law; or 

• a Christian Science practitioner listed with the First Church 
of Christ, Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts. 

 
Key Employee 

 
A salaried employee who is among the highest paid ten percent of 
CCMC’s employees. 

Parent 
 

Biological, foster or adoptive parents, stepparents, legal guardians, or 
someone who plays or has played the role of parent, but does not include 
parents-in-law. 

 
Serious Health Condition. 

 
An illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves: any period of incapacity or treatment connected with inpatient 
care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical 
care facility. 
• any period of incapacity requiring absence of more than three 

calendar days from work, school, or other regular daily 
activities that also involves either: (i) two in-person visits with a 

39



 

Page 29 of 54  

health care provider within seven days of the onset of leave and 
within a thirty day period thereafter, or (ii) one in-person visit 
with a health care provider within seven days of the onset of 
leave and with a regimen of continuing treatment by or under 
the supervision of, a health care provider; or 

• continuing treatment of at least two visits per year by or under the 
supervision of, a health care provider for a chronic or long-term 
health condition that is incurable or so serious that, if not treated, 
would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three 
calendar days, or prenatal care. 

• Spouse - A legal marital relationship under applicable state law. 
 

6.2 Bereavement Leave 
 

When death occurs in a regular employee’s immediate family (i.e. spouse, parent, child(ren), 
sibling, or step-relation thereof, father or mother-in-law or grandparent(s) or grandchild(ren), 
the employee may request leave under this policy. The Administrator/CEO may grant up to 
forty (40) hours of paid Bereavement Leave for full-time employees. For part-time 
employees, bereavement leave is prorated based on regular hours worked in one week. The 
employee may be requested to provide verification of the need for, eligibility for, or duration 
of leave. 

 
6.3 Uniformed Service Leave  

 
A uniformed service leave of absence will be granted to CCMC employees in accordance 
with federal and state law. Eligible employees are those called to serve in the uniformed 
services who have not had more than 5 years of total absence from CCMC for all uniformed 
service. 
 

6.3.1 Giving of Notice 
 

Employees must provide as much advance notice of uniformed service as possible. 
Notice may be given either orally or in writing to the Human Resources Division. 
Employees will be required to provide copies of military orders or other documents 
to validate the need for leave. 

 
6.3.2 Length of Leave 

 
The duration of any single uniformed service leave may not exceed six months in a 
12- month period. Additionally, an employee may not receive a total amount of 
uniformed service leave from CCMC that exceeds five (5) years of cumulative 
uniformed service leave. An employee who exceeds 6 months of uniformed service 
leave in a 12-month period will be terminated with eligibility for rehire but will 
retain reemployment rights as described below so long as their cumulative 
uniformed service leave from CCMC does not exceed five years. All periods of 
uniformed service leave taken in a twelve-month period from October 1 of each 
year to September 30 of the following year will be included in calculating the total 
military leave used, including, but not limited to, weekend training exercises. 

 
6.3.3 Return to Work 

 
An employee serving from 1 to 30 days must report to his/her Department Manager 
by the beginning of the first regularly scheduled workday that would fall eight hours 

40



 

Page 30 of 54  

after the employee returns home from uniformed service. Uniformed service 
includes reasonable time for travel to and from the place of service. An employee 
whose uniformed service lasts from 31 to 180 days must make application for 
reemployment no later than 14 days after completion of the period of uniformed 
service. An employee whose uniformed service lasts more than 180 days must make 
application for reemployment no later than 90 days after completion of the period of 
uniformed service. Employees returning from service will be required to provide 
satisfactory documentation: (1) of their period of service, (2) of the timeliness of 
their application for reemployment, (3) that their service did not exceed the 5-year 
limit, and (4) that the character of their service was honorable. 

 
6.3.4 Reemployment Position 

 
An employee serving from 1 to 90 days will be reemployed in the position the 
employee would have held had the employee remained continuously employed, so 
long as the employee is qualified for the position or can become qualified after 
reasonable efforts. An employee serving 91 days or more will be reemployed in (1) 
the position the employee would have held had the employee been continuously 
employed, or (2) a position of equivalent status and pay, so long as the employee is 
qualified for the position or can become qualified after reasonable efforts. If the 
employee cannot become qualified, the employee will be reemployed in any other 
position of lesser status and pay that the employee is qualified to perform with full-
service credit. 

 
6.3.5 Nondiscrimination 
No one may discriminate against any employee who is called to serve in the 
uniformed services. CCMC prohibits acts of reprisal against returning uniformed 
service members and those who would testify to discrimination against a uniformed 
service member. If you are the victim of discrimination on the basis of your 
uniformed service, you are requested and encouraged to make a complaint to 
CCMC. You may complain directly to your Department Manager, the Human 
Resources Manager, or the Administrator/CEO. CCMC will promptly and 
thoroughly investigate any complaint or report of a violation of this policy. 
 

 
6.3.6 Benefits Continuation During Uniformed Service Leaves 

 

A. Group Health Plan 
 

Employees who experience a loss of coverage under CCMC’s group health 
plan due to uniformed service may elect to continue such coverage. The 
maximum period of continuation coverage of the employee and the 
employee’s dependents shall be the lesser of (1) the 18 month period 
beginning on the date on which the employee's absence begins, or (2) the 
day after the date on which the employee fails to apply for or return to a 
position of employment within the time periods specified above. 
Employees may continue coverage under CCMC’s group health plan 
regardless of the employee’s eligibility for military health care coverage 
(CHAMPUS/TriCare). Employees serving for 1-30 days may continue 
health coverage and pay only the employee share of coverage. An 
employee serving for 31 or more days will be required to pay 102 percent 
of the full premium under CCMC’s group health plan. An employee 
whose health coverage terminated due to uniformed services is not required 
to complete a waiting period for reinstatement to CCMC’s group health 

41



 

Page 31 of 54  

plan following reemployment. 
 

B. Life Insurance Benefits 
 

An employee on military leave may continue other benefits under the same 
terms as under any other leave of absence. An employee who returns to 
employment as specified above, will be reinstated to such other benefits 
without waiting for an open enrollment period. 

 
6.3.7 Compensation 

 
Employees may take paid leave for up to 16.5 working days per twelve-month 
period for training, instruction, and search and rescue in the U.S. armed forces 
reserves provided that the employee obtains the approval of the Human Resources 
Manager. In addition, five days of paid time off are provided to employees called 
to active duty by the governor. In all other cases, military leave is unpaid. 
Employees are permitted, but not required, to run accrued paid time off concurrently 
with unpaid uniformed service leave. 
 
 

 
6.4 Court Leave 

 
Any regular employee who is called to serve as a juror or who is subpoenaed as a witness 
shall be entitled to court leave. A copy of the court summons will be required. Court leave 
will be paid at the employee’s base rate of pay not to include shift differential or overtime. 

6.5 Voting Leave 
 

CCMC encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by participating in 
elections. Generally, employees are able to find time to vote either before or after their regular 
work schedule. If employees are unable to vote in an election during their non-working hours, 
CCMC will grant up to two hours of paid time off to vote. If any employee has two 
consecutive hours in which to vote, either between the opening of the polls and the beginning 
of the employee's regular working shift, or between the end of the regular working shift and 
the closing of the polls, the employee shall be considered to have sufficient time outside 
working hours within which to vote and will not be entitled to paid time off to vote. If unable 
to find time to vote before or after regular work schedules, employees should request time 
off to vote from their Department Manager at least two working days prior to the Election 
Day. Advance notice is requested so that necessary time off can be scheduled at the beginning 
or end of the work shift; whichever provides the least disruption to the normal work schedule. 

 
6.6 Educational Support and Leave 

 
Leave for education purposes, when the time spent is not work time, must be pre-approved 
by the Department Manager or taken as PTO. Any other type of leave sought by the 
employee (such as paid leave not deducted from PTO) must be approved by the 
Administrator/CEO. Licensed or certified personnel may have specific amounts of 
educational leave set out by individual contract, in which case the taking of leave shall be 
addressed and scheduled pursuant to department policy and the contract. Other forms of 
educational support, such as reimbursement for books, tuition or travel, must also be pre-
approved in writing by the Administrator/CEO. CCMC may impose conditions on 
reimbursement, including a minimum passing grade or continued employment with the 

42



 

Page 32 of 54  

Medical Center, as a condition of granting leave or financial support. CME reimbursement 
will not be considered without a Certificate of Completion along with receipts. The 
reimbursement will be specific to the signed Agreement between the Employee and the 
Administrator/CEO. 

 
6.7 Income Assurance Program (IAP) 

 
This was a former benefit accrued each pay period to be used for medical leave as defined 
under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993. The accrual of this benefit is no 
longer effective as of July 8, 2001. Employees who have accrued IAP shall retain their IAP 
bank for appropriate use through the term of their employment. There is no cash redemption 
value to the IAP with the exception of the employees defined under the IAP Recovery Policy. 
The IAP is not to be used in addition to benefits payable under workers compensation. 

 
6.7.1 IAP Use 

 
The employee may use IAP for the following purposes: 

 
• A serious health condition; 
• To care for a family member with a serious health condition; 
• The birth of a child; 
• The placement of a child for adoption or foster care. 

 
To request use of IAP, the employee must complete the leave paperwork in 
accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act Policy. Such paperwork may be 
obtained from the HR department. IAP may be used after one calendar week of 
absence due to the above conditions. 

 
6.7.2 IAP Recovery 

 
Employees hired before July 1, 1996, shall retain eligibility for a prior provision 
regarding payment of one-half of their IAP account. Eligible employees have letters 
so stating in their individual personnel file. 
 
6.8      Lactation Accommodations 
CCMC complies with federal and state laws regarding lactation accommodation. 
Employees who need to express breast milk will be provided with reasonable break 
time and access to a private, non-bathroom space that is shielded from view and 
free from intrusion. These breaks may run concurrently with paid or unpaid rest 
periods. Requests for accommodation should be directed to Human Resources. 
 
 

7. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 

7.1 ATTENDANCE 
 

7.1.1 Reporting to Work 
 

The Medical Center is a 24-hour a day, seven-day a week health care facility. 
Absences cause undue hardship on co-workers and can adversely impact our 
patients. Reporting to work when scheduled is an essential function of all Medical 
Center positions. While regular attendance is an essential function of all positions, 
CCMC fully complies with Alaska’s Paid Sick Leave Law and ensures that 

43



 

Page 33 of 54  

employees will not be disciplined or terminated for the lawful use of protected sick 
leave. 

 
7.1.2 Notice of Absence or Lateness 

 
Absence, for whatever reason, must be promptly reported to your Department 
Manager when you learn of the need for the absence, and at least four (4) hours in 
advance of your scheduled reporting time. If your Department Manager is not 
available, leave him/her a voicemail message on their cell phone and then call 424-
8000. Inform the individual answering the phone that you are calling out for your 
shift and request that they give a message to your Department Manager. If you are 
in an essential position such as nursing or CNA, you need to start calling your 
coworkers to find coverage for your shift. You are responsible for providing your 
Department Manager with up-to-date telephone numbers where you can be reached, 
in case of an emergency situation, or for adjustment of scheduled shifts. 

 
7.1.3 Grounds 
An absence without valid reason may be treated as unexcused. One or more “no-
call” or “no-show” absences constitutes grounds for disciplinary action, including 
termination. 

 
Excessive absenteeism and abuse of leave policies may result in negative 
performance evaluation, and/or discipline up to and including immediate 
termination of employment. 

 
Three (3) consecutive call-outs, prior to employees returning to work the employee 
will be required to provide a note from their PCP or from CCMC Employee Health. 

 
7.1.4 Illness 

 
We reserve the right to send home any employee who reports to work sick, ill, or 
impaired, and to require them to use PTO if available. Time off is provided in our 
employee policies to accommodate illness and conditions that impair the 
employee’s ability to work safely and effectively. An employee who appears to be 
impaired by the effects of alcohol or drugs may be required to undergo drug/alcohol 
screening. An infectious illness must be reported to your Department Manager in 
confidence, to assist in identifying or preventing facility-wide infectious outbreaks 
and confirming your eligibility to work without risk to patients, residents, and co-
workers. 

 
7.2 Performance Evaluations 

 
Performance evaluations will be completed on annual basis by the department 
heads. Performance evaluations are prepared in order to communicate regularly 
about the position requirements, employee strengths and weaknesses, opportunities 
for improvement and training, and goals for performance. Forms for evaluation 
may be obtained from Human Resources. CCMC fully reserves the option of 
tailoring evaluation forms to the needs of the position as well as the individual 
employee. 
 
7.2.1 Regular Assessments 

 
Written performance evaluations will be provided for regular employees, on an 

44



 

Page 34 of 54  

annual schedule, which is usually at or near the anniversary date of employment. 
Both the Department Manager and the employee are responsible for participating 
in the process, which may include a self-evaluation, and scheduled 
interview/discussion. The performance evaluation will be filed in the personnel file 
when completed and signed. The employee may add comments to the evaluation 
within 20 days, in the space provided. 

 
7.2.2 Following Introductory Period. 

 
A written evaluation may be provided but is not required before deciding to release 
an employee at the end of or during the introductory period or an extension; a 
written evaluation is optional in the judgment of the Department Manager in 
consultation with Human Resources. 

 
7.2.3 Unsatisfactory Rating 

An unsatisfactory performance rating in two or more categories indicates the 
manager and employee shall discuss a plan of action, when a mutual and 
constructive discussion can occur. 

 
7.3 Smoke-Free Workplace 

 
CCMC is a Smoke-Free Facility as well as a Smoke-Free property. CCMC encourages 
employees not to smoke and smoking cessation resources are available to those employees 
who desire to quit smoking. See your Department Manager or Human Resources for more 
information. Smoking is not allowed in CCMC vehicles or in housing furnished by CCMC. 

 
7.4 Standards of Performance 

 
The Medical Center has identified a number of common violations and types of misconduct 
which may result in disciplinary action. The list provides illustrations only, and other grounds 
not specifically listed may result in personnel action. In addition, an employee’s inability or 
failure to meet performance goals or standards may result in an adverse personnel action 
(such as, no wage increase, transfer, demotion, dismissal), with or without active misconduct 
or other grounds for discipline. 

 
The following non-inclusive list describes examples of conduct or activities 
which are unacceptable: 

 
 Excessive absenteeism and/or unauthorized absences, tardiness. 
 Unauthorized use of or willful damage of facility property; 
 Leaving the job or facility premises without permission while on duty; 
 Sleeping on duty; 
 Abuse of lunch or rest breaks; 
 Discourtesy or disrespect to patient/residents, visitors, physicians, or coworkers; 
 Acceptance of gifts or tips; 
 Intentional violation of safety rules; 
 Fighting; 
 Insubordination; 
 Dishonesty or theft; 
 Timecard violations; 
 Sabotage or vandalism; 
 Falsifying records; 
 Illegal behavior or activities; 

45



 

Page 35 of 54  

 Having illegal possession of, being under the influence of, or partaking of 
intoxicants or controlled substances while on the job; 

 Vulgar or abusive language; 
 Disclosure of confidential information; 
 Failure to comply with departmental or Medical Center policies or procedures; 
 Allowing one’s children to congregate or loiter in or around the premises; 
 Disregard of personal grooming, cleanliness, appearance, or conduct standards; 
 Smoking in unauthorized areas; 
 Falsification or omission of employment application information; 
 Performance of personal work or study on Medical Center time; 
 Other causes recognized by law, grant requirements, or posted rules. 

 
7.5 Compliance with Healthcare Laws 

 
As a recipient of government funds, including Medicare and Medicaid funds, this facility 
and each of its employees have an affirmative obligation to strictly comply with Civil False 
Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C. § 3729-3788 (1995), which prohibits health care providers from knowingly or 
recklessly submitting false or fraudulent claims for payment to the government. 

 
7.5.1 Reporting Requirements 

 
As an employee of the Medical Center, you have an obligation to report any conduct 
which you reasonably believe violates the law or the Medical Center’s policies, 
procedures or code of conduct, including violation of any adopted compliance plan. 
Employees should report a suspected violation to the Administrator/CEO or the 
Compliance Officer. 

 
7.5.2 Medical Center’s Response 

 
The Medical Center takes all reports of potential violations of law or policy 
seriously, and any employee receiving a report shall forward the information to the 
Compliance Officer who shall promptly review the report or evidence and 
determine whether there is any basis to suspect that a violation has occurred. 
CCMC will take follow-up steps to ensure compliance, which may include 
warning, other discipline, training, or other measures to prevent repetition. 

 
 

7.6 Solicitation 
 

Employees are not permitted to solicit during working time or in patient/resident care areas. 
An employee may not solicit another employee during the latter's work time. Employees are 
not permitted to distribute literature during working time or in working areas. Employees 
are not permitted to solicit or distribute literature to non-employees on the Medical Center 
premises. Off-duty employees are prohibited from entering any area not open to the public 
and are prohibited from interfering with an on-duty employee's performance of her/his work 
tasks. 

 
For purposes of this section 7.6, working time does not include meal breaks or other specified 
times during the work shift when employees are not engaged in performing their work tasks. 
Working areas are defined as areas on the premises where employees perform their work 
tasks, but do not include break rooms, rest rooms, parking lots, or other non-work areas. 
Immediate patient/resident  care areas include patient/resident rooms, therapy rooms, 

46



 

Page 36 of 54  

nursing stations, radiology, and other patient/resident treatment rooms. 
 

Any solicitation of patients and residents is strictly prohibited. 
 

 
7.7 Maintaining the Proper Healthcare Environment 

 
The staff of CCMC work hard to create an environment that will be conducive to recovery 
from illness and to establish a warm and comfortable living environment. An important 
element of patient/resident care is isolation from unwanted noise and unpleasant distraction; 
be considerate of patients and residents by keeping voices down, avoiding distracting or 
unnecessary conversation with co-workers, and minimizing equipment or traffic sounds. 

 
All employees must be continuously aware of how employee interactions and 
communications are overheard and observed by patients and residents. All staff are 
encouraged to maintain a professional demeanor commensurate with the important mission 
of the Medical Center. Patients may be disturbed by loud conversation, laughter, whistling, 
singing, hallway chit-chat, excess traffic and movement, and employee socializing. Public 
discussion of complaints, criticisms, inter- departmental gossip and internal dissension 
communicated by or among staff can be especially distressing and impair the trust and 
confidence of Medical Center clients. Accordingly, we have provided opportunities for 
breaks, as well as specific procedures for communicating about concerns privately, with the 
goal of minimizing impacts on internal operations and patient relations. 

 
The conduct of employee's children on the premises is the responsibility of the employee. 
Children of employees may be authorized to wait briefly in designated areas with the consent 
of the Department Manager. 

 
7.8 Personal Appearance/Dress Code 

 
Your CCMC name badge must be at all times worn during work hours. Uniforms are to be 
worn in areas of direct patient care, housekeeping or the kitchen. Any questions regarding 
uniforms, scrubs, hairnets or other requirements should be directed to the Department 
Manager. 
Jewelry must be modest and safe in areas of direct patient care. All employees having patient 
or resident contact must be sensitive to irritants, allergenic substances, scent, dander, and 
sprays which may cause reactions. Perfume is not allowed in patient care areas. 

 
Employees working in the kitchen, housekeeping, or individuals providing any type of patient 
care services are forbidden to wear false nails due to infection control issues. 

 
During hours of operation, business or business casual clothing must be worn at all times in 
the facility. This may include pants, jeans, slacks, skirts, dresses, sweaters, dress or casual 
shirts. All clothing must be clean and in good repair (i.e., no holes, rips, tears, or excessive 
fading). Clothing inappropriate to the workplace includes sweats, t-shirts with inappropriate 
logos, statements or images, tank tops, halter tops, shorts, and “netted” clothing. 
 
7.9 Telephones/Cell Phones 

 
Medical Center telephone lines are available as a priority for medical and emergency purposes 
only. Receiving or making personal telephone calls should be minimized to avoid distraction, 
disturbance and noise to others. 
Cell Phone use: To maintain a productive and professional work environment, the use of 
personal cell phones during work hours should be kept to a minimum, except during 

47



 

Page 37 of 54  

designated break times or in the case of an emergency.  Employees are expected to keep 
personal devices set to silent mode while on duty and use for work related duties only.  If 
you need to use your phone for personal reasons, please do so during scheduled breaks or in 
an appropriate area away from workstations.  Unauthorized cell phone use during work hours 
may result in disciplinary action. 

 
7.10 Cybersecurity, Computer, Internet and E-Mail Usage 

 
This Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual describes CCMC’s policy regarding use 
of the internet, email, computer software, voice mail, and all other equipment or facilities 
owned or leased by CCMC, including, but not limited to, computers, telephones, fax 
machines, and photocopiers. Internet access, email, computers and computer software, 
telephones, voice mail, fax machines, photocopiers, and all other equipment owned or 
leased by CCMC (collectively referred to in this policy as "such items") are provided to 
employees for work-related purposes only. Personal use of such items does not afford 
employees any privacy rights. Instead, such items are provided solely for use in work-
related transactions or work-related communications for, or on behalf of, CCMC. 

 
Email Usage on Personal Cell Phones: 

 
If you are a Non-Exempt employee and your Department Manager or Administrator/CEO 
did not authorize the employee to respond to emails on the employee's personal cell phone, 
the employee will not be compensated. If the employee is non-exempt and work performed 
for the benefit of the employer at the request of the Department Manager or 
Administrator/CEO it is compensable. The employer has the right to enforce what is expected 
in terms of work hours and activities. 

 
While such items are provided for the conduct of CCMC business, it is understood that they 
may be used occasionally for personal use as well. Reasonable occasional personal use is not 
prohibited, so long as it does not interfere with employees' performance of their job 
responsibilities. Any questions regarding what constitutes reasonable occasional personal 
use should be directed to your Department Manager. 

 
Notwithstanding the above provision regarding the use of such items for reasonable 
occasional personal use, employees shall not at any time communicate anything that might 
be construed as discrimination or harassment, or offensive to others based on race, color, 
marital or veteran status, sex, disability, age, religion, national origin, or other legally 
protected status, by means of such items. Further, employees shall not use such items at any 
time to solicit business for a venture not related to work or for other personal gain. Employees 
shall not at any time use such items for illegal activities, solicitation, or to promote their 
religious or political beliefs. Finally, employees shall not access such items from home or 
outside the workplace at any time to communicate personal or private matters, for 
discrimination or harassment, for a venture not related to work or for other personal gain, for 
illegal activities, solicitation or to promote religious or political beliefs. 

 
Employees must exercise special care in handling privileged, proprietary, confidential, or 
copyrighted information and communications. Any dissemination of such materials must be 
limited to persons with a legal right to access them. Almost all data and software is 
copyrighted. Care should be exercised whenever accessing or copying any information that 
does not belong to you. 

 
Due to CCMC's limited network and storage capacity, employees shall not download any 
programs, graphics, video, or audio to the network unless it is necessary for CCMC business 
purposes and authorized by the employee’s Department Manager and IT Department. 

 

48



 

Page 38 of 54  

All traffic to and from the internet must travel through CCMC's approved internet gateway in 
order to assure maximum security, virus protection, monitoring, and system management 
capabilities. Employees may be provided an email account. 

 
Any executable files, programs or utilities downloaded or received (by Email, USB or other 
media) from the internet or other external source must be scanned for viruses and licensed 
prior to launching. Scan all files with any virus prevention software provided to you by 
CCMC. 

 
If you require assistance in scanning for viruses or licensing software, please contact your 
Department Manager and/or the IT Department. Employees are prohibited from using 
CCMC's systems for transmission of destructive programs such as viruses or self-replicating 
code. 

 
Regarding email and internet communications, it is important for employees to understand 
that such communications can be traced to the sender even after they have been "deleted." In 
addition, CCMC may be required to produce email messages, internet communications, or 
other communications, in connection with legal proceedings. Further, CCMC may regularly 
review, audit, and download email messages, internet communications, or other 
communications that employees sent or received. An employee may not create or send 
abusive or inappropriate email or participate in improper activities not related to work 
utilizing the internet, such as chat rooms, or download abusive or inappropriate matters from 
the internet. Employees are not permitted to print, display, download, or send any sexually 
explicit images, messages, cartoons, or jokes. If an employee receives such things from 
another person, he or she must immediately advise the sender that he or she is not permitted 
to receive such information and not to send it again. If the employee needs assistance in 
responding to situations such as that described above, he or she must contact his/her 
Department Manager. 

 
If you are a Non-Exempt (hourly) employee and you choose to add work email to your 

personal devices, you will not be compensated for time spent reviewing and responding to 
emails during personal time away from work. If the employee is non-exempt and work 
performed for the benefit of the employer is at the request of the Department Manager or 
Administrator/CEO the time spend responding to email is compensable. The employer has 
the right to enforce what is expected in terms of work hours and activities. In order to provide 
access to various properties owned or leased by CCMC, a password may be assigned to an 
employee and is the property of CCMC. Assigning a password to an employee does not 
mean that the employee has a right of privacy in his or her password, or in that item to which 
the password provides access. For example, assigning an employee a password to log on 
to a computer does not mean that the employee's use of that  
computer is in any way private; CCMC retains the right, at all times, to access stored and other 
data on the computer. An employee cannot use unauthorized or secret passwords, and all 
passwords must be shared with your Department Manager, or other management employee 
upon request. 

 
7.10.1 Additional policies and procedures for Use of the Internet 

 
The following policies and procedures are in addition to those described above. 
CCMC encourages use of the internet to disseminate information to the public and 
CCMC’s employees (collectively called "users") to improve communications with 
the public and/or to carry out official business when such business can be 
accomplished consistent with the  following guidelines:  

 
Departments and employees should base decisions to use the internet on sound 
business practices. The conduct of business via the internet is particularly 

49



 

Page 39 of 54  

compelling where costs are reduced and/or the services provided to users are 
improved in measurable ways. 

 
A. Information and services presented via the internet should 

emphasize ease of use for a broad audience, be presented in a 
friendly manner, and include clear choices, ease of navigation, on-
screen instruction, and the like. 

 
B. Disseminate information that is current, accurate, complete, and 

consistent with CCMC policy. Information accuracy is 
particularly important on the internet. Where paper-based 
information is often not current, information presented 
electronically is expected to be current. Users expect this 
information to be not only current but often to be the first 
available. 

 
C. Protect privileged, confidential, copyrighted and proprietary 

information of CCMC. Questions regarding any such 
information should be routed to your Department Manager. 

 
D. Never make an unauthorized attempt to enter any computer or 

another site on the internet from CCMC’s servers (commonly 
known as “hacking”). 

 
E. If you are using information from an internet site, you should 

verify the integrity of that information. You should verify whether 
the site is updated on a regular basis (the lack of revision date 
might indicate out-of-date information) and that it is a valid 
provider of the information you are seeking. Just because it is 
there does not mean that it is accurate or valid. 

 
F. Use of internet mailing lists and news groups is prohibited unless 

authorized by a Department Manager and the IT Department. 
 

G. The use of social media, i.e., Facebook, Twitter, Flickr, Pinterest, 
Tumblr, Vimeo is prohibited without prior written approval from 
your Department Manager. A copy will be given to the Human 
Resources Manager/IT Department. 

 
H. There will be no slander, misrepresentation, or defamation of 

CCMC by any employee or contracted employee in conversation 
or on social media. 

 
7.10.2 Additional Policies and Procedures for Use of Email. 

 
The following policies and procedures are in addition to those described above: 

 
A. The representation of yourself as someone else, real or fictional, 

or a message sent anonymously is prohibited. 
 

B. Email requires extensive network capacity. Sending unnecessary 
email, or not exercising restraint when sending very large files, 
or sending to a large number of recipients, consumes network 
resources that are needed for CCMC business. When CCMC 

50



 

Page 40 of 54  

grants an individual employee access to the network, it is the 
responsibility of the employee to be cognizant and 

 respectful of network resources.  
 

ELECTRONIC MAIL ON THE INTERNET IS NOT SECURE. 
Never include in an email message anything that you want to 
keep private and confidential because email is sent unencrypted 
and is easily read. 

 
C. Be careful if you send anything but plain ASCII text as email. 

Recipients may not have the ability to translate other documents, 
for example, Word documents. Be careful when sending replies 
– make sure you are sending to a group when you want to send to 
a group, and to an individual when you want to send to an 
individual. Check carefully the "To" and "From" before sending 
mail. It can prevent unintentional errors. 

 
D. Include a signature (an identifier that automatically appends to 

your email message) that contains the method(s) by which others 
can contact you. (Usually your email address, phone number, fax 
number, etc.) 

 
E. Use automatic spell check programs if available. 

 
 

7.11 Remote Work 
 

CCMC permits eligible employees to work from a remote office location approved 
by Administration/CEO subject to certain conditions. The following policies and 
procedures apply: 

 
A. Eligibility: Not all work performed by CCMC lends itself to remote 

work. Thus, managers determine individual responsibilities and 
obligations during the remote work period and whether work is 
conducive to a remote working environment. Eligibility to work 
remotely shall be determined by the manager and approved by the 
CEO. This permission may be withdrawn at any time as the hospital 
requires. 

B. Designated Workspace: It is the responsibility of the employee to 
designate a remote workspace, which is typically a space in the 
employee’s home (an office, spare bedroom, etc.). 

 
If, while working from a designated workspace, the employee 
experiences technical issues with his or her computer or internet 
access that prevent the employee from working remotely, the 
employee must notify his or her manager immediately. Interruptions 
to work caused by internet outages may require the employee to 
work from their regular office space for the remainder of the day, or 
until the outage is fixed. Employees working from a designated 
workspace may, from time to time, be required to come to their usual 
work site as required by the needs of the business. 

 
C. Remote Meetings: Employees working from a designated 

workspace will be expected to attend all essential meetings via video 

51



 

Page 41 of 54  

conference or by phone. 
 

D. Rules and Policies: All of CCMC’s rules and policies, including 
those set forth in this Employee Handbook, apply while working 
from a designated workspace. These policies include, but are not 
limited to, policies regarding attendance, confidentiality, and 
policies prohibiting harassment. Employees are reminded that this 
Work From Home Policy is not to be used in place of sick leave, 
FMLA leave, etc. CCMC is not responsible for any expenses 

 related to remote work. CCMC is not responsible for associated cost of 
telephone or internet service to the individual’s designated 
remote workspace. 

 
E. Labor Laws: If the employee's designated workspace is not located 

in Alaska, all local state labor laws must also be followed. 
 

F. Computer Monitoring: Employees working from a designated 
remote workspace understand that their computers and the internet 
may be monitored periodically by CCMC during their work time. 
Employees approved to work remotely must comply with all CCMC 
data privacy, HIPAA, and cybersecurity protocols. Personal devices 
used for work purposes must have adequate security measures, and 
access to patient or confidential information must be conducted 
through secure channels. 
 

 
G. Designated Work Time: Employees must follow their regular 

assigned work schedule, unless otherwise discussed with and 
approved by the employee’s manager. All arrangements for 
childcare, elder care, repair persons, etc. must be arranged so as not 
to interfere with the employee’s regular work schedule. 

 
H. Time Keeping: Employees who are non-exempt from the overtime 

requirements of federal and state laws will be required to accurately 
record all hours worked and submit accurate time records to their 
Department Managers. Non-exempt employees must obtain prior 
approval before performing any work outside of scheduled hours, 
including remote work, responding to work-related messages, or using 
electronic systems after hours. All time worked must be accurately 
recorded and will be compensated in accordance with state and federal 
wage laws. 
 

 
I. Meal and Rest Breaks: Non-exempt employees are expected to 

adhere to the meal and rest break policies set forth in the Employee 
Handbook. These non-exempt employees may take an uninterrupted 
meal break of 30 minutes to 60 minutes. Such time will be unpaid. 
Employees may also take a 15- minute paid rest break every six 
hours. Employees are relieved of all duty during such meal and rest 
breaks and must not conduct work of any kind while they are on 
their meal or rest breaks. 

 
J. Confidentiality and Security: Employees working remotely are 

reminded that even if they are working from a designated remote 
workspace, they are bound by any confidentiality and/or security 

52



 

Page 42 of 54  

agreements they signed in connection with their employment with 
CCMC, and any confidentiality and/or security policies contained in 
the Employee Handbook. Thus, consistent with CCMC’s 
expectations of information security for employees working in the 
office, remote employees will be expected to ensure the protection 
of proprietary company and customer information accessible from 
their home office. Steps include regular password maintenance, 
locked file cabinets and desks to store sensitive information, and any 
other measures appropriate for the job and the environment of the 
designated workspace. 

 
 

8. DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE 
 

8.1 Federal Drug Free Workplace Act Policy Statement 
 

This Statement is provided pursuant to the Drug-Free Work Place Act of 1988. CCMC 
provides this Statement to its employees because it may receive certain federal grant 
funds. 

 
8.1.1 Statement 

 
CCMC HAS A ZERO TOLERENCE POLICY FOR ABUSE OF SCHEDULED AND 
ILLEGAL DRUGS WHILE ON DUTY. 

 
CCMC has a policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. In accord with the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988 and to promote drug-free awareness among 
employees, CCMC, informs its employees that: 

 
A. Drug abuse in the workplace creates a dangerous environment for 

the employee engaged in the drug abuse and endangers the health, 
safety and welfare of all employees and other persons in the 
workplace. 

 
B. It is the policy of CCMC to maintain a drug-free workplace. The 

illegal manufacture, distribution, possession or use of controlled 
substances in any CCMC workplace is strictly prohibited at any 
time. 

 
C. Upon the request of an employee, the employee will be provided 

with information on a confidential basis about drug counseling or 
rehabilitation program(s) that might assist the employee. 

 
D. Actions may be taken against employees for violations of CCMC’s 

policy, up to and including termination of employment. 
 

8.1.2 Policy and Procedures 
 

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of a controlled substance 
is prohibited on any premises occupied or controlled by CCMC. Appropriate 
disciplinary actions, up to an including termination, will be taken against CCMC 
employees for violations of this prohibition. 

 

53



 

Page 43 of 54  

“Controlled substance” for purposes of this Statement means a controlled substance 
listed in schedules I through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act 
(21 U.S.C. § 812), and as further defined by federal regulations (21 C.F.R. 1308.11 
– 1308.15). This list includes, but is not limited to, heroin, PCP, cocaine and 
amphetamines. 

 
A condition of employment for work under certain grants received by CCMC from 
the federal government, is that each employee will, as a condition of continued 
employment: 

 
A. Abide by the terms of this Statement. 

 
B. Notify CCMC of his or her conviction under a criminal drug 
statute for any violation occurring in the workplace no later than five 
days after such conviction. 

 
“Conviction” means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nolo contendere) or 
imposition of sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility 
to determine violations of the Federal or State criminal drug statutes. 

 
“Criminal drug statute” means a Federal or non-federal criminal statute involving 
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, use or possession of any controlled 
substance. 

 
If the criminal drug statute violation occurred in the workplace a sanction will be 
imposed on the employee so convicted. Within 30 days after receiving notice of 
the conviction: 

 
CCMC will take appropriate disciplinary action against such employee, up to and 
including termination; or CCMC will require such employee to satisfactorily 
participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such 
purpose by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement or other appropriate 
agency. 

 
Employees are encouraged to use any resources available to them to address personal 
drug and alcohol abuse issues. An employee may be entitled to leave under the 
Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) or AS 23.10.500 through AS 23.10.550 
(“State FMLA”) to address personal drug and alcohol abuse issues. For employees 
enrolled in CCMC’s health insurance plan, coverage may be available for a portion 
of the cost of addressing such issues. Additionally, employees may also be entitled 
to use accrued Paid Time Off and/or leave without pay other than FMLA or State 
FMLA to address such issues. The Human Resources Department can provide an 
employee with additional information about these options. 

 
8.2 Drug and Alcohol Testing 

 
All questions regarding this policy should be directed to the Human Resources Department 
for CCMC. 

 
8.2.1 Purpose 

 
CCMC is committed to promoting a work environment free of drugs and alcohol 
and to maintaining the highest standards for the health and safety of its employees 
and the public at large. Employees who are under the influence of drugs or alcohol 
pose a serious threat to the safety of the employee, co-workers and the public. 

54



 

Page 44 of 54  

Employees may not report to work impaired by drugs and/or alcohol or engage in 
other prohibited conduct as provided in this policy. 
 
8.2.2 Prohibited Conduct 
This policy prohibits certain conduct related to alcohol and controlled 
substances as described below. 

 
A. Consequences for Prohibited Conduct Related to Alcohol Use 

 
An Employee shall not report for duty while having any amount of alcohol 
in their system. As used in this policy, “duty” means all time from the time 
when the Employee begins to work or is required to be in readiness to 
work, until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for 
work. 

 
No Employee shall drink alcohol while on duty. No Employee required to 
take a post-accident alcohol test shall drink alcohol for eight (8) hours 
following the accident, or until he/she undergoes a post-accident test if the 
post-accident test occurs before the 8 hours has elapsed. 

 
An Employee engaging in any of the prohibited conduct described above 
will be immediately removed from duty. An Employee shall also be 
disciplined for engaging in such prohibited conduct, up to and including 
termination. 

 
B. Controlled Substances. 

 
No Employee shall report for duty or be on duty under the 
influence of any substance while on duty. 

 
C. Other On the Job Violations 

 
The unauthorized use, possession, manufacture, distribution or sale of 
alcohol or an illegal drug, controlled substance or drug paraphernalia on or 
in CCMC owned property (including CCMC vehicles) or while on CCMC 
business, or during working hours can result in termination. 

 
D. Refusal to Undergo Testing 

 
Refusing to immediately submit to a drug or alcohol test when 
requested by CCMC, in accordance with this policy may result in 
termination. 

 
E. Failing Testing 

 
Testing positive for drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy may 
result in termination. 

 
F. Removal from Duties 

 
An Employee engaging in any of the prohibited conduct described above 
shall be immediately removed from duty. An Employee shall also be 

55



 

Page 45 of 54  

disciplined for engaging in such prohibited conduct, up to and including 
termination. 

 
8.2.3 Categories of Employees Tested 

 
All CCMC employees who are not required to obtain a Commercial Driver’s 
License are subject to Reasonable Cause testing under this policy. CCMC 
employees who hold Safety Sensitive positions and who are not required to obtain 
a Commercial Driver’s License are subject to Pre-Employment, Post-Accident, 
Reasonable Cause, Random testing and Return to Work testing under this policy. 

8.2.4 Testing 
 

An Employee will be tested for alcohol/controlled substances use under the 
following circumstances: 

 
A. Pre-Employment Testing 

 
Prior to the first time an Employee in a Safety Sensitive position is 
required to report for duty at the start of his or her employment with 
CCMC, the Employee must undergo testing for controlled substances. 

 
B. Post-Accident Testing 

 
An Employee in a Safety Sensitive position shall be tested for alcohol 
and controlled substances after use of equipment or a vehicle by the 
Employee while on the job in the following circumstances: when a 
human fatality, bodily injury requiring treatment, or property damage in 
excess of $500 results from the Employee’s use of the equipment or 
vehicle. 

 
C. Reasonable Cause Testing 

 
Any CCMC Employee may be subject to testing upon a reasonable and 
articulable suspicion or belief that the Employee is using a controlled 
substance or alcohol on the basis of specific, contemporaneous physical, 
behavioral, or performance indicators of probable drug or alcohol use. 
Trained Department Managers and/or Administrator/CEO will make the 
decision whether there is reasonable suspicion to believe an employee 
has used drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy. If there is reasonable 
suspicion of active intoxication with marijuana, a positive drug screen for 
marijuana will be interpreted as evidence of current use. 

 
D. Return to Duty Testing 

 
Employees in all positions engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy, 
he or she will be required to undergo a return-to-duty test, if the 
Employee has not already been discharged. With alcohol, the Employee 
must have an alcohol concentration of less than 0.02 on a return-to-duty 
test. With controlled substances, the Employee must test negative on a 
return-to-duty test. 

 
8.2.5 Testing Procedures 

56



 

Page 46 of 54  

 
Testing for alcohol concentration and controlled substances is conducted in 
accordance with the same testing procedures that apply to CDL drivers, i.e., in 
compliance with 49 C.F.R. Part 40 and 49 C.F.R. Part 382. A copy of those 
regulations is on file at CCMC offices and is available for your review. 

 
CCMC utilizes urine specimen collection procedures for testing for controlled substances. 
A clean, single-use specimen bottle that is securely wrapped until filled with the 
specimen is used, as is a clean, single-use collection container that is securely 
wrapped until it is employed. CCMC also has a tamperproof sealing system on all 
bottles to ensure against undetected tampering, a numbering system to ensure 
proper identification, and it uses a collection site person who is properly trained or 
qualified. There is a designated collection site where specimens are taken, and 
where adequate privacy and security measures are in place. Persons collecting 
samples are trained to maintain the integrity and identity of the specimens. A 
medical review officer (MRO) examines and interprets test results. 

 
For alcohol testing, a breath alcohol technician (BAT) operates an evidential breath-
testing device (EBT). This test may be completed in cooperation with local law 
enforcement. The testing occurs in a location affording privacy, and the BAT 
utilizes a federally developed Breath Alcohol Testing form to ensure accuracy as to 
testing results. 

 
There are special testing procedure rules applicable to post-accident testing. If an 
alcohol test is not administered within two hours following the accident, CCMC 
prepares and maintains on file a record stating the reasons the test was not promptly 
administered. If a test is not administered within eight hours following the accident, 
CCMC shall cease attempts to administer an alcohol test and shall prepare and 
maintain the same record. 

 
If a post-accident test for controlled substances is not administered within 32 hours 
following the accident, CCMC shall cease attempts to administer a controlled 
substances test and prepare and maintain on file a record stating the reasons the test 
was not promptly administered. 

 
An Employee who is subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available 
for such testing or may be deemed by CCMC to have refused to submit to testing. 
Of course, medical attention for injured people following an accident is of the highest 
importance, and an Employee may leave the scene of an accident for the period 
necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the accident, or to obtain necessary 
emergency medical care. 
 
8.2.6 Reporting Test Results 

 
The MRO shall review confirmed positive test results prior to the transmission of 
results to CCMC. The MRO shall contact the employee within 48 hours and offer 
an opportunity to discuss the confirmed test result. If the MRO determines there is 
a legitimate medical explanation for the positive test result, the MRO shall report 
the test as negative. 

 
An employee may obtain a copy of the written test results only upon written request 
made within six months of the date of the test. CCMC will provide the written test 
results to the employee pursuant to that request within five working days of its 
receipt. 

57



 

Page 47 of 54  

 
An employee who would like an opportunity to explain a positive test result in a 
confidential setting must make such a request in writing within 10 working days of 
being notified of the test result. An employee who submits such a timely written 
request will be given the opportunity, within 72 hours after its receipt or before taking 
adverse employment action, to explain the positive test in a confidential setting.  

 
8.2.7 Requirement to Submit to Testing/Refusals to Submit 

 

An Employee must submit to the testing described above. Refusal to submit to 
testing shall result in discipline, up to and including termination. Refusal to submit 
occurs in the following situations: (1) failure by an Employee to provide a urine 
sample without genuine inability to provide a specimen (as determined by a medical 
evaluation) after he or she received notice of the requirement to be tested; (2) 
failure to provide an adequate breath for testing without a valid medical 
explanation after receiving notice of the requirement to be tested; and (3) 
engaging in conduct that clearly obstructs the testing process. 

 
8.2.8 Confidentiality of Results 

 
All records relating to drug and alcohol testing will be maintained in a secure, 
confidential medical file in the Human Resources Department. A communication 
received by MRO relevant to drug or alcohol test results and received through 
CCMC’s testing program is confidential and privileged, and will not be disclosed 
by CCMC to anyone outside CCMC except: 
 

 
A. to the tested employee, prospective employee or another person 

designated in writing by the employee or prospective employee; 
 

B. an individual designated to receive and evaluate test results 
or hear the explanation from the employee or prospective 
employee; 

 
C. as ordered by a court or governmental agency; or 

 
D. in any proceeding initiated by or on behalf of the individual 

and arising from a positive test. 
 

8.2.9 Definitions 
 

A. Accident 
for purposes of this program will be defined as an incident 

involving a vehicle or piece of machinery or equipment operated by a 
CCMC 
employee that causes or is involved with the loss of human life, 
the issuance of a moving traffic citation under state or local law, 
medical treatment (other than first aid) administered away from 
the scene, or significant property damage. 
 

B. Alcohol 
means ethanol, isopropanol, or methanol. 
 

58



 

Page 48 of 54  

C. Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) 
means an individual who operates an EBT and instructs and 

assists individuals in the alcohol testing process. 
 

D. Detectable or Measurable Quantity 
means at or above the levels identified in this policy. 
 

E. Drug(s) 
means a substance considered unlawful under AS 11.71 or      
under federal law, or the metabolite of the substance. 

F. Drug Testing 
means testing for evidence of the use of a drug. 
 

G. Evidential Breath Testing Device (EBT) 
is a device approved by the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration for the evidential testing of breath. 
 

H. Failing A Drug Test 
shall mean the test results show positive evidence of the 
presence of a drug or drug metabolite in an employee’s system. 
 
 

I. Medical Review Officer (MRO) 
is the licensed physician or doctor of osteopathy who is 
responsible for reviewing positive laboratory results generated 
by CCMC ’s testing program. 
 

J. Prospective Employee 
means a person who has been offered a job, whether by oral or 
written means. 
 

K. Safety Sensitive Functions 
are those having a substantially significant degree of 
responsibility for the safety of the public where the unsafe 
performance of an incumbent could result in death or injury 
to self or others. 
 

L. Sample 
means urine or breath from the person being tested. 
 

M. Screening Test or Initial Test 
means an analytic procedure to determine whether an employee 
may have a prohibited concentration of drugs or alcohol in a 
specimen. 
 

N. Refusal to submit 
means failure to cooperate and provide a drug or alcohol 
sample, after receiving notice of the test in accordance 
with CCMC Drug and Alcohol Abuse and Testing Policy. 
A refusal will be treated the same as a positive test result. 
 

O. Under the Influence, affected by, or Impaired by drugs 
or alcohol means the presence of drugs or alcohol. 

 

59



 

Page 49 of 54  

9. DISCIPLINE AND DISMISSAL 
 

9.1 Disciplinary Action 
 

Violations of standards will result in disciplinary action. Disciplinary response may range 
from informal action (counseling, reminder, verbal warning), to more formal action (written 
reprimand, suspension, dismissal), depending upon the nature and seriousness of the offense. 
Disciplinary measures may be progressive, but not in all cases. This policy does not specify 
the step or response that must occur at any stage of the disciplinary process. Each individual 
and circumstance will call for a tailored response and managerial judgment. 

 
9.2 Separation from Employment 

 
All employees are hired at CCMC for an indefinite period of time and may be discharged 
with or without reason or notice. Separations generally occur when: an employee is laid off 
due to lack of work either temporarily or permanently, when an employee is discharged, or 
when an employee resigns his or her position within CCMC. The three types of separations 
are: 

9.2.1 Layoff 
If it becomes necessary to reduce the workforce, employees affected by the 
workforce reduction will be given preferential rehire rights. 

 
9.2.2 Discharge 

 
The decision to discharge employees is based not only on the seriousness of the 
current performance infraction but also on the individual’s overall performance 
record. 

 
9.2.3 Resignation 

 
Employees in most positions are requested to give their Department Manage two 
weeks’ written notice of their intent to resign; employees classified as direct care 
providers, licensed personnel, managers, and directors are requested to give four 
weeks' notice. Failure to give such notice could result in ineligibility for rehire. All 
employees who resign their positions with CCMC for any reason are asked to 
participate in an exit interview with the Human Resources Manager. 

 
9.3 Wage Payment Upon Termination 

 
Where an employee is involuntarily terminated by CCMC, the employee will be paid within three 
(3) working days of termination all wages, salary or other compensation due. In cases where 
an employee voluntarily terminates/resigns, the employee will be paid all wages, salary or 
other compensation due by the next regular payroll date. 

 
9.4 Return of Property 

 
On their last day of employment, employees are required to return all CCMC property to 
their Department Manager or designee. Terminating employees will be provided information 
pertaining to benefits by the Human Resources Department. 

 
9.5 Promotions and Transfers 

 

60



 

Page 50 of 54  

It is CCMC’s policy to promote from within CCMC whenever possible. It is our intent to 
maintain a highly qualified work force at all times. Current employees who are qualified for 
and interested in a posted position are required to submit a resume and application to Human 
Resources in accordance with CCMC’s hiring procedure. It is the general policy to make all 
appointments on the basis of merit and fitness for the particular position and to fill vacancies 
from within CCMC by promotion when qualified employees are available. However, CCMC 
reserves the right in every instance to hire the most qualified candidate for each job position. 
 
 

 
9.6 Re-Employment 

 

9.6.1 Former Employees 
 

If you are re-employed, you will be processed as a new employee. Previous service 
will not be used to increase the PTO accrual schedule. Other benefits may be 
reinstated if re- employment occurs within 90 (ninety) days of separation. 
 

9.6.2 Recalled Employees 
 

A “recall” following layoff is an offer of reemployment to the same or equivalent 
position, which occurs within 90 days of the lay-off, for employees who 
remain eligible for employment with CCMC. If an employee is recalled to 
work, employee will have 3 calendar days to notify CCMC whether they accept 
the recall, and a total of 7 business days to return to work from the time of notice 
of the recall option, unless CCMC waives the time limits in writing. If the 
employee does not respond affirmatively, or fails to return as scheduled, all recall 
opportunities are deemed automatically forfeited. 

 
9.7 References Policy 

 
Reference requests must be directed to Human Resources for response. The Medical Center 
furnishes dates of employment, title, and position(s) held without requiring a release or 
authorization from the former employee. A signed employee release of information is 
required by CCMC prior to releasing or disclosing any additional information. This policy 
does not waive any right or privilege of CCMC under Alaska law regarding responding to 
reference requests. 

 
10. HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 
10.1 Reporting Employee Injuries 

  
Employees must report all workplace illness or injury within 24 hours of the injury, to the 
Department Manager or Clinic nurse. A Report of Occupational Injury or Illness Form must 
be completed and returned to HR at that time. Failure to complete this form will delay 
processing and may cause denial of workers' compensation claims. Fraudulent or 
intentionally inaccurate statements contained in the Report of Occupational Injury or Illness 
Form or an unreasonable failure to report an occupational injury or illness is cause for 
disciplinary action. 

 
10.2 Accidents/Needle Sticks 

 

61



 

Page 51 of 54  

Potential hazards should be reported to the Department Manager, the Facilities Manager, 
and/or the Administrator/CEO. If an accident does occur involving an employee, patient, 
resident, or visitor, it must be reported immediately to the Department Manager, and/or 
Administrator/CEO and a written report must be prepared. Reporting procedure packets are 
available at the Nurses Station. Needle sticks must be handled in a similar fashion and the 
employee must report to the employee Clinic nurse during the same workday. 

 
10.3 Weapons Prohibited 

 
CCMC specifically prohibits the possession of weapons or firearms by any persons while 
in the Medical Center, with the exception of law enforcement personnel. 

 
 

11. OPEN COMMUNICATION POLICY 
 

The Medical Center seeks to promote positive working relationships consistent with effective delivery 
of health care. Maintaining an Open Door Policy for exchanging ideas and discussing issues that 
impact the Medical Center (either positively or negatively) is an important responsibility. Our policies 
are intended to allow employees to informally bring up issues of concern affecting the Medical Center, 
other employees, policymaking, or their department, in a timely manner. 
Employees are encouraged to consult management at appropriate times during the business day, in 
appropriate settings and locations, to foster constructive and thoughtful discussion. If a matter is 
urgent, it may be helpful to introduce the topic with the Department Manager and determine if a later 
scheduled appointment will permit fuller discussion. The Human Resources Manager can assist you 
in determining whether an issue is of general concern. 

 
To the extent practicable, sensitive matters will be treated confidentially. Participants are expected to 
use appropriate judgment and discretion when sharing issues outside the relevant, responsible 
managers and staff. 

 
12. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of CCMC to treat all employees equitably and fairly in matters affecting their 
employment. Each employee of the Medical Center shall have the opportunity to respond 
and resolve those matters affecting their employment which are a violation of these policies 
and procedures. The employee shall have the right to present any grievance without fear of 
reprisal. 
 
12.1 Definition of a Grievance 

 
A grievance is a written complaint by a regular full-time or regular part time employee or 
group of employees challenging the interpretation, application or alleging a violation of a 
specific personnel policy, departmental rule, or other regulation which affects the terms of 
conditions of their employment. Temporary employees, casual employees and volunteers are 
not eligible to use these grievance procedures. Any employee in his/her introductory period 
is not entitled to use these grievance procedures. 

 
12.2 Grievance Process 

 

12.2.1 Step 1 
 

Any employee having a problem regarding the terms and conditions of his/her 
employment shall first discuss the problem with his/her Department Manager If the 
problem is not settled, and it can be defined as a grievance, the employee has the 

62



 

Page 52 of 54  

right to present the grievance as a Step 2 grievance. All appeals from suspensions 
of more than three (3) working days, disciplinary demotion or disciplinary 
separation shall be initiated at Step 3. Employees may bypass one or more Steps of 
the grievance process when reporting a complaint or expressing any issue of 
concern regarding alleged discrimination or harassment and may raise such 
concerns directly with the Administrator/CEO (Step 3). 

 
12.2.2 Step 2 

 
If the grievance is not settled informally, the employee shall document, in detail, 
the specific personnel policy, departmental rule, or other regulation alleged to be 
misinterpreted, misapplied or violated. This formal grievance shall be dated, signed 
and submitted to the Department Head within five (5) working days from: (i) the date 
of receipt of a disciplinary action memo by employee, in person, or by mailing, or (ii) 
of the violation which is the subject matter of the employee's complaint. If 
acceptance of the letter transmitting a disciplinary action memo is refused, or the 
letter is not picked up within ten (10) working days of posting, the employee will 
be deemed to have waived his/her rights to grieve. The Department Head shall reply 
to the written grievance in writing within five (5) working days after receipt of 
the written grievance. A determination made by the  
Department Head that the form of the grievance is insufficient, may be  
appealed to the Administrator/CEO (Step 3). 

 

12.2.3 Step 3 
 

Upon receipt of the Department Head's response, the employee shall have five 
working days to appeal the decision in writing to the Administrator/CEO. If the 
employee fails to appeal the Department Head's decision within five (5) working 
days, such failure to respond will decide the grievance in favor of the Department 
Head's Step 2 decision. The Administrator/CEO shall reply in writing within five 
(5) working days after the date of presentation of the grievance. 

 
12.2.4 Step 4 

 
Upon receipt of the Administrator/CEO response or failure of the 
Administrator/CEO to respond, the employee shall have five (5) working days to 
request mediation. If the employee fails to file a written request for mediation within 
five (5) working days, such failure will serve to decide the grievance in favor of the 
Administrators Step 3 decision. 
 

 
12.3 Mediation 

 

12.3.1 Step 1 
 

Within ten (10) working days of the receipt of a request for mediation, the 
Administrator/CEO shall schedule a meeting with the parties involved, including 
the CCMC Human Resources Manager, to attempt to resolve the differences through 
informal mediation. This is a nonbinding good faith attempt to resolve differences. 
Neither party shall be entitled to any additional representation. If resolved at this 
informal meeting, the decision shall be reduced to writing, signed and copies 
distributed to all parties. 

 
12.3.2 Step 2 

63



 

Page 53 of 54  

 
If the grievance is not resolved through informal mediation within ten (10) working 
days, the aggrieved employee(s) may request arbitration of the dispute, as provided 
for below. 

 
12.4 Arbitration 

 

12.4.1 Step 1 
 

The aggrieved employee(s) may select, within five (5) working days, a mutually 
acceptable competent Alaskan arbitrator who can commit to scheduling a hearing 
and rendering a decision in an expeditious manner. Should the Administrator/CEO 
and the aggrieved employee(s) be unable to agree upon the appointment of an 
arbitrator, they shall select an arbitrator, by the striking method, from a list of seven 
qualified Alaskan arbitrators supplied by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation 
Service (FMC). The Administrator/CEO and the aggrieved employee(s) shall 
alternatively strike one name from such list, and the sole remaining name shall be 
appointed as the arbitrator. 
 
12.4.2 Step 2 

 
The arbitrator shall conduct a hearing in accordance with generally accepted 
standards and procedures for grievance or arbitration and in as expeditious manner 
as possible. 

 
 

12.4.3 Step 3 
 

Any decision by the FMC's arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties 
concerned. The arbitrator has the power to decide all issues, including awards of 
back pay if appropriate. It is understood and agreed that the arbitrator shall not have 
any power to add to or amend any of the provisions of these policies or rules. 

 
12.4.4 Step 4 

 
Each party in the proceedings will pay the cost of presenting their case. The 
arbitrator's fee will be paid by CCMC, unless it is found by the arbitrator that the 
grievance has been frivolous or not in good faith. In such an event, the employee 
shall pay the arbitrator's fees. 
 
 

 
12.5 Time Limits of the Essence 

 
The time limits referred to in this policy must be strictly adhered to but may be waived or 
modified by mutual agreement in writing. It is the intent that all procedures set forth herein 
shall be complied with as expeditiously as practicable. If the employee shall fail to comply 
with the limits imposed within this section the grievance shall be deemed waived. If the 
Department Manager, or Administrator/CEO shall fail to meet the time limits imposed within 
this section, a disciplinary action which forms the basis of the employee's grievance shall be 
suspended during the period of noncompliance with the time limits and the employee will 
continue to accrue all pay and benefits as if the disciplinary action had not occurred. 

 
12.6 Exclusive Remedy 

64



 

Page 54 of 54  

 
The grievance, mediation and arbitration procedures of this section are the sole and exclusive 
remedies of the employees of CCMC contesting violations of these policies and/or 
disciplinary actions. An employee must fully exhaust these remedies prior to filing any 
lawsuit or other administrative action. 

65



July 2025 
This is a blank and printable July Calendar.  Courtesy of WinCalendar.com 
 

◄ Jun 2025 July  2025 Aug 2025 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
  1  

 
2  
 

3  
 

4  
 

5  
 

6  
 

7  
 

8  
 

9  
 

10  
 

11  
 

12  
 

13  
 

14  
 

15  
 

16  
 

17  
 

18  
 

19  
 

20  
 

21  
 

22  
 

23  
 

24  
 

25  
 

26  
 

27  
 

28  
 

29  
 

30  
 

31  
 

 

More Calendars: Aug 2025, Sep 2025, 2021 

66

https://www.wincalendar.com/Calendar-and-Schedule-Templates
https://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/June-2025
https://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/August-2025
https://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/August-2025
https://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/September-2025
https://www.wincalendar.com/2021-Word-Calendar

	HSB June 25' Agenda
	CCMC HOSPITAL SERVICES BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA
	JUNE 26, 2025, REGULAR MEETING
	12:00PM HYBRID IN-PERSON

	Binder1
	hsb may 25' mtg minutes
	CCMC CEO Board Report
	05. May 2025 Financials
	05. May 2025 Statistics
	Recommendation to Board for privileges.rtf
	eric davis memo
	Memo 2025 Employee handbook memo
	9.26.2024 Employee Handbook draft -Final
	2. YOUR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP WITH CCMC
	3. HIRING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	4. COMPENSATION
	4.10 On-Call Compensation
	5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	6. LEAVE POLICIES

	6.1.2 Reasons Eligible employees may be granted FMLA or State FMLA (AFLA)
	6.1.3 Military Family Leave.
	6.1.4 When Medical Certification Is Required.
	6.1.11 Employer Notice
	6.1.12 Definitions
	7. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	8. DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE
	CCMC HAS A ZERO TOLERENCE POLICY FOR ABUSE OF SCHEDULED AND ILLEGAL DRUGS WHILE ON DUTY.
	9. DISCIPLINE AND DISMISSAL
	10. HEALTH AND SAFETY
	11. OPEN COMMUNICATION POLICY
	12. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE


	July-2025-Calendar




